
Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard 

Agenda 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, February 26, 2024 

 
Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor; Meetings 
will continue to be offered via Zoom see final page for connection 
details. Per Maine CDC, COVID transmission rate is LOW; masks 
are not required.  
 

 
I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Public please hold comments until the Selectboard Chairman opens the agenda items 
for public comment.  When addressing the Board, state your FULL NAME (both in 
person and on Zoom).  It is suggested that you enter your full name as your ID on 
Zoom. 
 

II. Minutes 
A. Approval of minutes from February 5, 2024 meeting 

 
III. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 

A. Consider appointment of Colby Hamor to the position of Buildings & Grounds 
effective March 11, 2024 at the six month probationary rate of $23.28 per hour 

B. Recognition of the appointment of Justin Kelley to the Mechanic B position of the 
Highway Division of Public Works 

C. Recognition of the resignation of Decatur French from the Mechanic B position of the 
Highway Division 

 
IV. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  

Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.) 
A. Warrant Committee Meeting Minutes from January 30, 2024 
B. Thank you note from Mount Desert Nursing Association 
C. Letter from Emmaus Homeless Shelter 
D. Maine Department of Health and Human Services acknowledgement of General 

Assistance Statutes compliance 
 

V. Selectboard’s Reports 
 

VI. Unfinished Business 
None presented. 
 

VII. New Business 
A. Presentation of Service Groups/Non-profit Agency Funding Requests Budget FY 2025 
B. Request from Camp Beech Cliff to be included in the Town Report 
C. Discussion of a new contract with EMR in Southwest Harbor for solid waste handling 

services 
 
 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda February 26, 2024 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

VIII. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other 
Business or out of order.) 
 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 
 

 
IX. Treasurer’s Warrants 

A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 
Town Invoices AP#2452 02/27/2024 $215,012.11 
Total   $215,012.11 

 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 

below: 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2449 

 
02/07/2024 

 
$46,975.17 

 AP#2450 02/15/2024 $123,108.61 
Town Payroll PR#2420 02/16/2024 $156,427.44 
Total   $326,511.22 

 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 

Warrants as shown below: 
School Invoices AP#8 02/07/2024 $203,411.66 
School Payroll PR#16 02/16/2024 $196,660.93 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
 

 
 

 
$0 

Total   $400,072.59 
 

Grand Total   $941,595.92 
 

X. Adjournment 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Monday, March 4, 2024 Location: 
Northeast Harbor Fire Department Conference Room (please follow the signs when you 
enter the meeting room), Town Hall, Northeast Harbor 
 
 

(ZOOM connection on next page) 
  



Selectboard Meeting Agenda February 26, 2024 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  You can call in 
through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.  You will 
need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09 

 
Meeting ID: 248 566 175 

Password: 919872 
 

One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago) 

+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York) 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
Zoom security now requires a password on all zoom meetings, so the recurring BS meeting now 
has a password. 
 
 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09




MINUTES 

  





Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 5, 2024 
Page 1 
 

 1 
 2 

Town of Mount Desert  3 
Selectboard Minutes 4 

February 5, 2024 5 
 6 

Selectboard Members Present: Chair John Macauley, Rick Mooers, Martha Dudman, Geoff Wood 7 
 8 
Board member Wendy Littlefield was not in attendance. 9 
 10 
Town Employees and Officials Present:  Tax Assessor Kyle Avila, CEO Kimberly Keene, Fire 11 
Chief Mike Bender, Public Works Director Brian Henkel, Town Manager Durlin Lunt, Town 12 
Manager Claire Woolfolk, Finance Director Mae Wyler 13 
 14 
Members of the Public were also present. 15 

 16 
I.  Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 17 
Chair Macauley called the Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 18 

 19 
II. Minutes 20 
A. Approval of Minutes from January 16, 2024 meeting 21 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of the January 16, 2024 22 
Minutes as presented. 23 
Motion approved 4-0. 24 

 25 
III. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 26 
A. Consider appointment of Gail Marshall to the Comprehensive Planning Committee as LUZO 27 

Advisory Committee liaison 28 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, appointment of Gail Marshall to the 29 
Comprehensive Planning Committee as LUZO Advisory Committee liaison as presented. 30 
Motion approved 4-0. 31 
 32 
B. Appointment of Carrie Eason as Warden for the March 5, 2024 Presidential Primary Election 33 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, appointment of Carrie Eason as 34 
Warden for the March 5, 2024 Presidential Primary Election as presented. 35 
Motion approved 4-0. 36 
 37 
C. Appointment of Heidi Smallidge as Deputy Warden for the March 5, 2024 38 

Presidential Primary Election 39 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, appointment of Heidi Smallidge as 40 
Deputy Warden for the March 5, 2024 Presidential Primary Election as presented. 41 
Motion approved 4-0. 42 
 43 
D. Accept resignation of Paul Accomando as Building and Grounds employee effective February 44 

16, 2024 45 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, acceptance of resignation of Paul 46 
Accomando as Building and Grounds employee effective February 16, 2024 as presented. 47 
Motion approved 4-0. 48 

 49 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 5, 2024 
Page 2 
 

IV. Consent Agenda 1 
A. Survey of Mount Desert Island town’s shellfish license allocations 2 
B. Small Animal Clinic Contract for 2024 3 
C. Warrant Committee Minutes of January 23, 2024 4 
D. A Climate to Thrive Sustainability Committee – Climate Action Plan Update; listening 5 

session February 7, 2024 6 
E. Acadia National Park Advisory Commission Minutes for the September 11, 2023 meeting 7 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, acceptance of the Consent Agenda 8 
as presented. 9 
Motion approved 4-0. 10 

 11 
V. Selectboard’s Reports 12 
There were no Selectboard’s Reports 13 

 14 
VI. Unfinished Business 15 
There was no Unfinished Business. 16 
 17 
VII. New Business 18 

A. Public Space Special Event Application 1-2024 – MDI Farmers’ Market Northeast Harbor 19 
Village Green; Thursdays 9am – noon from June 27 – August 29, 2024 20 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of Public Space Special 21 
Event Application 1-2024 – MDI Farmers’ Market Northeast Harbor Village Green; Thursdays 22 
9am – noon from June 27 – August 29, 2024 as presented. 23 
 24 
It was noted the Event Application fee applies to the entire summer. 25 
 26 
Motion approved 4-0. 27 
 28 
B. Public Space Special Event Application 2-2024 – Help Portrait MDI Seal Harbor Village 29 

Green; Saturday, October 5, 2024; 8am – noon 30 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of Public Space Special Event 31 
Application 2-2024 – Help Portrait MDI Seal Harbor Village Green; Saturday, October 5, 2024; 8am – 32 
noon as presented. 33 
Motion approved 4-0. 34 

 35 
C. Review and approve contract amendment with Haley Ward for CCA-I for the Northeast Harbor 36 

Village Center Improvement Project in the amount of $79.290.91 37 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval of contract amendment 38 
with Haley Ward for CCA-I for the Northeast Harbor Village Center Improvement Project in the 39 
amount of $79.290.91 as presented. 40 
Motion approved 4-0. 41 

 42 
D. Close of Town Office for election day, March 5, 2024 43 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, closing the Town Office for election day, 44 
March 5, 2024. 45 

 46 
Clerk Woolfolk explained that with the Town Clerks at the election and not in the office, it becomes 47 
hard on other staff.  The public will be able to do things with other departments in the Town Office by 48 
appointment that day.  The closure will be advertised. 49 

 50 
Motion approved 4-0. 51 

 52 



 

3 
 

 

E. Consideration of authorizing Fire Chief Mike Bender to purchase a new 2024 6.5- meter rigid 1 
inflatable boat, motor, and trailer from Ribcraft USA in the amount of $113,144.00 with said 2 
funds to be used from the Fire Department Equipment Reserve Account Number 4040300-3 
24471 with a current unencumbered balance of $436,354.92 4 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, authorizing Fire Chief Mike Bender 5 
to purchase a new 2024 6.5- meter rigid inflatable boat, motor, and trailer from Ribcraft USA in 6 
the amount of $113,144.00 with said funds to be used from the Fire Department Equipment 7 
Reserve Account Number 4040300-24471 with a current unencumbered balance of $436,354.92 8 
as presented. 9 
No vote was taken. 10 
 11 
Mr. Wood voiced concern that the purchase was not sent out to bid.   12 
 13 
Fire Chief Bender explained the type of bought he sought to purchase was the type the Fire 14 
Department has trained on.  There are no Maine vendors who make it.  The boat will be for both 15 
freshwater and ocean.  The boat would be kept at the Somesville fire station.  Quick access to both 16 
Long Pond and the ocean can occur.  17 
 18 
Further discussion ensued.   19 
 20 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to table the item for now, until Fire 21 
Chief Bender has a chance to look further into the purchase.   22 
Motion approved 4-0. 23 

 24 
F. Proposed FY25 Revenue Budget review 25 
Finance Director Wyler reported the revenue estimated is derived from a budget analysis.  The previous 26 
two years have been higher revenue, due to a variety of factors, including good interest rates and good 27 
deals the Town was able to reach with Bar Harbor Bank and Trust in the past year.  These are factors 28 
that may not repeat themselves.  Additionally, the budget has increased in the past few years.  If the 29 
Town wants to maintain 10 – 12% of expenses coming out of the fund balance, to stay in compliance, 30 
$400,000.00 is a good, conservative way to go.  31 
 32 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, endorsement of the numbers presented in 33 
the proposed FY25 Revenue Budget review. 34 
Motion approved 4-0. 35 
 36 
G. DRAFT Warrant articles for review and votes 37 
Article 1. To elect a Moderator by written ballot. 38 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 1 titled 39 
“To elect a Moderator by written ballot.” as presented. 40 
Motion approved 4-0. 41 
 42 
Article 2.  To elect one member to the Selectboard for a term of three years, two members to the 43 
Mount Desert Elementary School Board for a term of three years, and one trustee to the Mount 44 
Desert Island Regional School District for a term of three years. 45 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 2 titled 46 
“To elect one member to the Selectboard for a term of three years, two members to the Mount Desert 47 
Elementary School Board for a term of three years, and one trustee to the Mount Desert Island Regional 48 
School District for a term of three years.” as presented. 49 
Motion approved 4-0. 50 
 51 
Article 3.  To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to speak during the 2024 52 
Annual Town Meeting. 53 



 

4 
 

 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 3 titled 1 
“To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to speak during the 2024 Annual Town 2 
Meeting.” as presented. 3 
Motion approved 4-0. 4 
 5 
Article 4.  Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert Alewife 6 
Ordinance” be enacted? 7 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 4 titled 8 
“Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled ‘Town of Mount Desert Alewife Ordinance’ be 9 
enacted?” as presented. 10 
Motion approved 4-0. 11 
 12 
Article 5.  Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Disbursement Warrant 13 
Ordinance” of the Town of Mount Desert be enacted? 14 
MOTION:  Mr. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 5 titled 15 
“Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled ‘Disbursement Warrant Ordinance’ of the Town of 16 
Mount Desert be enacted?” as presented. 17 
Motion approved 4-0. 18 
 19 
Article 6.  Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Consumer Fireworks Ordinance” 20 
of the Town of Mount Desert be enacted? 21 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 6 titled 22 
“Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled ‘Consumer Fireworks Ordinance’ of the Town of 23 
Mount Desert be enacted?” as presented. 24 
Motion approved 4-0. 25 
 26 
Article 7.  Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled “Special Amusement Permit 27 
Ordinance” of the Town of Mount Desert be enacted? 28 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 7 titled 29 
“Shall an ordinance dated May 7, 2024 and entitled ‘Special Amusement Permit Ordinance’ of the 30 
Town of Mount Desert be enacted?” as presented. 31 
Motion approved 4-0. 32 
 33 
Article 25.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 34 
Selectboard to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A 35 
§5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or funds on behalf of the Municipal Fire 36 
Department.  37 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 25 38 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to 39 
accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A §5655), equipment, 40 
proceeds from sale of fire equipment or funds on behalf of the Municipal Fire Department.” as 41 
presented. 42 
Motion approved 4-0. 43 
 44 
Article 26.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 45 
Selectboard to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, federal and other funds 46 
(including gifts and grants, as well as funds received under the American Rescue Plan Act and 47 
similar legislation) received during the fiscal year 2024-2025 for Town purposes, provided that 48 
such additional funds do not require expenditure of local funds not previously appropriated 49 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 26 50 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to 51 
accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, federal and other funds (including gifts and 52 
grants, as well as funds received under the American Rescue Plan Act and similar legislation) received 53 



 

5 
 

 

during the fiscal year 2024-2025 for Town purposes, provided that such additional funds do not require 1 
expenditure of local funds not previously appropriated” as presented. 2 
Motion approved 4-0. 3 
 4 
Article 27.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 5 
Selectboard to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to 6 
the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2024 under such terms 7 
and conditions as the Selectboard, in its sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the 8 
Town 9 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 27 10 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to 11 
lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to the Ticket Booth 12 
operators for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2024 under such terms and conditions as the 13 
Selectboard, in its sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town” as presented. 14 
Motion approved 4-0. 15 
 16 
Article 28.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 17 
Selectboard, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to 18 
the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2024 under 19 
such terms and conditions as the Selectboard, in its sole discretion, deems to be in the best 20 
interests of the Town 21 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 28 22 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard, to 23 
lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to the Mount Desert 24 
Chamber of Commerce for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2024 under such terms and 25 
conditions as the Selectboard, in its sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town” as 26 
presented. 27 
Motion approved 4-0. 28 
 29 
Article 29.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Selectboard, 30 
to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood House Club, Inc. for 31 
management and maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for a term of one (1) year 32 
beginning July 1, 2024 under such terms and conditions as the Selectboard, in its sole discretion, 33 
deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 34 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 29 35 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Selectboard, to 36 
negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood House Club, Inc. for management and 37 
maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2024 under 38 
such terms and conditions as the Selectboard, in its sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of 39 
the Town.” as presented. 40 
Motion approved 4-0. 41 
 42 
Article 35.  To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will authorize the 43 
Selectboard, to consent to the reallocation of $16,500 in Town funds originally contributed by the 44 
Town to the Mount Desert Community Development Corporation (the “CDC”) in 2019 to 45 
partially finance construction of a park, but which the CDC has requested be reallocated to the 46 
purchase of refrigeration equipment for the municipal skating rink. 47 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 35 48 
titled “To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will authorize the Selectboard, to 49 
consent to the reallocation of $16,500 in Town funds originally contributed by the Town to the Mount 50 
Desert Community Development Corporation (the ‘CDC’) in 2019 to partially finance construction of a 51 
park, but which the CDC has requested be reallocated to the purchase of refrigeration equipment for the 52 
municipal skating rink.” as presented. 53 



 

6 
 

 

Motion approved 4-0. 1 
 2 
Article 37.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to approve July 1, 3 
each year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable providing that all unpaid taxes 4 
on September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest at an annual rate of 8.5% (percent) per 5 
year. (Tax Club members are exempt within the terms and conditions of the Town’s Tax Club 6 
Agreement.) 7 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 37 8 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to approve July 1, each year, as 9 
the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable providing that all unpaid taxes on September 1, of 10 
each year, shall be charged interest at an annual rate of 8.5% (percent) per year. (Tax Club members are 11 
exempt within the terms and conditions of the Town’s Tax Club Agreement.)” as presented. 12 
Motion approved 4-0. 13 
 14 
Article 38.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Tax 15 
Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers whereby: (1) the taxpayer 16 
agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town based on the taxpayer’s estimated and 17 
actual tax obligation for current year property taxes (real estate and/or personal); (2) the Town 18 
agrees to waive interest on timely payments; (3) the Town authorizes the Tax Collector to accept 19 
payment of taxes prior to commitment of taxes; (4) the agreement automatically terminates if two 20 
consecutive payments are missed and the taxpayer thereupon becomes subject to the same due 21 
date and interest rate as other nonparticipating taxpayers; (5) only taxpayers who are paid in full 22 
on their property tax obligations may participate; and (6) interested taxpayers shall apply 23 
annually for participation by the date shown on the application, date and application format to 24 
be determined by the Tax Collector. 25 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 38 26 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to 27 
enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers whereby: (1) the taxpayer agrees to pay 28 
specified monthly payments to the Town based on the taxpayer’s estimated and actual tax obligation for 29 
current year property taxes (real estate and/or personal); (2) the Town agrees to waive interest on timely 30 
payments; (3) the Town authorizes the Tax Collector to accept payment of taxes prior to commitment 31 
of taxes; (4) the agreement automatically terminates if two consecutive payments are missed and the 32 
taxpayer thereupon becomes subject to the same due date and interest rate as other nonparticipating 33 
taxpayers; (5) only taxpayers who are paid in full on their property tax obligations may participate; and 34 
(6) interested taxpayers shall apply annually for participation by the date shown on the application, date 35 
and application format to be determined by the Tax Collector.” as presented. 36 
Motion approved 4-0. 37 
 38 
Article 39. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-payment of 39 
property taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated amount to be committed in the 40 
subsequent year, with no interest to be paid on same. 41 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 39 42 
titled “To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-payment of property 43 
taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated amount to be committed in the subsequent year, 44 
with no interest to be paid on same.” as presented. 45 
Motion approved 4-0. 46 
 47 
Article 40. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to set the interest rate 48 
to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the rate of 4.25% (percent) per 49 
year. 50 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 40 51 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to set the interest rate to be paid 52 
by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the rate of 4.25% (percent) per year.” as presented. 53 



 

7 
 

 

Motion approved 4-0. 1 
 2 
Article 41.  To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 3 
expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of Assessment Review, or 4 
Selectboard together with any interest due thereon from the Town, during the fiscal year 5 
beginning July 1, 2024, in an aggregate amount not to exceed the property tax commitment 6 
overlay. 7 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 41 8 
titled “To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize expenditures to pay 9 
any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of Assessment Review, or Selectboard together with 10 
any interest due thereon from the Town, during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, in an aggregate 11 
amount not to exceed the property tax commitment overlay.” as presented. 12 
Motion approved 4-0. 13 
 14 
Article 42.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 15 
Selectboard to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than real property, with a 16 
value of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) or less under such terms and conditions as it deems 17 
advisable. 18 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 42 19 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to 20 
dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than real property, with a value of ten thousand 21 
dollars ($10,000.00) or less under such terms and conditions as it deems advisable.” as presented. 22 
Motion approved 4-0. 23 
 24 
Article 43.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 25 
Selectboard to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to convey titles obtained 26 
under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabitants of the Town any land and/or 27 
buildings, including trailers, in lieu of payment of taxes except that the Selectboard have the 28 
power to authorize redemption.  Municipal Officers shall use the special sale process required by 29 
36 M.R.S. § 943-C for qualifying homestead property if they choose to sell it to anyone other than 30 
the former owner(s).  31 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 43 32 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to 33 
sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to convey titles obtained under tax deeds and 34 
under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabitants of the Town any land and/or buildings, including trailers, 35 
in lieu of payment of taxes except that the Selectboard have the power to authorize redemption.” as 36 
presented. 37 
Motion approved 4-0. 38 
 39 
Article 44.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 40 
Selectboard to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation for same, under such 41 
terms and conditions as it deems advisable. 42 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 44 43 
titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to 44 
contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation for same, under such terms and conditions 45 
as it deems advisable.” as presented. 46 
Motion approved 4-0. 47 
 48 
Article 48.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 49 
appropriate for Department 200 through 211 General Government – Governing Body 50 
(Selectboard), Municipal Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planning Board, 51 
Finance, Treasurer, Tax Collector, Assessment, Code Enforcement, Unallocated Funds, Human 52 
Resources, Technology, and Contracted Municipal and Community Oriented Services for the 53 



 

8 
 

 

2024 - 2025 Town Budget.  1 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 48 2 
titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate 3 
for Department 200 through 211 General Government – Governing Body (Selectboard), Municipal 4 
Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planning Board, Finance, Treasurer, Tax Collector, 5 
Assessment, Code Enforcement, Unallocated Funds, Human Resources, Technology, and Contracted 6 
Municipal and Community Oriented Services for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” as presented and in 7 
the amount of $2,187,338.00. 8 
Motion approved 4-0. 9 
 10 
Article 49.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 11 
appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 12 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 49 13 
titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate 14 
for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” as presented and in 15 
the amount of $5,000.00. 16 
Motion approved 4-0. 17 
 18 
Article 50.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 19 
appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 20 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 50 titled 21 
“To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for 22 
Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” as presented and 23 
recommending the amount of $232,580.00. 24 
 25 
Article 51.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 26 
appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 27 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 51 titled 28 
“To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for 29 
Department 406 Street Lights for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” as presented and recommending the 30 
amount of $12,250.00. 31 
Motion approved 4-0. 32 
 33 
Article 52.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 34 
appropriate for Department 401, 405, 407 and 408 Public Safety – Police and Communications 35 
(Dispatch) for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 36 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 52 titled 37 
“To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for 38 
Department 401, 405, 407 and 408 Public Safety – Police and Communications (Dispatch) for the 2024 39 
- 2025 Town Budget.” as presented and recommending the amount of $ 1,640,915.00. 40 
Motion approved 4-0. 41 
 42 
Article 53.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 43 
appropriate for Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire Department, Hydrants, and 44 
Emergency Management for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 45 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, recommending for passage Article 53 titled 46 
“To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for 47 
Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire Department, Hydrants, and Emergency Management 48 
for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” as presented and recommending the amount of $ 2,775,992.00. 49 
Motion approved 4-0. 50 
 51 
Article 54.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 52 
appropriate for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - Roads, Waste Management, 53 



 

9 
 

 

Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 Environmental Sustainability for the 2024 - 1 
2025 Town Budget. 2 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage Article 54 3 
titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate 4 
for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - Roads, Waste Management, Buildings & 5 
Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 Environmental Sustainability for the 2024 - 2025 Town 6 
Budget.” as presented and recommending the amount of $3,224,792.00. 7 
 8 
Article 55.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 9 
appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater Treatment) for the 2024 - 2025 10 
Town Budget. 11 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage Article 55 12 
titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate 13 
for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater Treatment) for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” as 14 
presented and recommending the amount of $1,237,169.00. 15 
Motion approved 4-0. 16 
 17 
Article 56.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 18 
appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & Maintenance) for the 2024 - 19 
2025 Town Budget. 20 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage Article 56 21 
titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate 22 
for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & Maintenance) for the 2024 - 2025 Town 23 
Budget.” as presented and recommending the amount of $5,900.00. 24 
 25 
Article 57.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 26 
appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for the 2024 - 2025 Town 27 
Budget. 28 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage Article 57 29 
titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate 30 
for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” as 31 
presented and recommending the amount of $10,000.00. 32 
 33 
Article 58.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 34 
appropriate for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget. 35 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage Article 58, 36 
Titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate 37 
for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” as presented and recommending 38 
the amount of $2,030,632.00. 39 
Motion approved 4-0. 40 
 41 
Article 60.  To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 42 
appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2024 - 2025 Town 43 
Budget. 44 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage Article 60 45 
titled “To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate 46 
for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2024 - 2025 Town Budget.” as 47 
presented, and recommending the amount of $1,705,927.00. 48 
Motion approved 4-0. 49 
 50 
Article 62.  To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 51 
Selectboard’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget. 52 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for ratification Article 62 53 



 

10 
 

 

titled “To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the Selectboard’s 1 
approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget.” as presented. 2 
Motion approved 4-0. 3 

 4 
VIII. Other Business 5 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 6 
At Ms. Dudman’s request, Town Manager Lunt reported on his recent meeting with Acadia National 7 
Park regarding the Otter Creek Fish House. 8 
 9 
B. Discussion of March 4 meeting location 10 
Town Clerk Woolfolk reported that the Meeting Room will be set up for the primary election on March 11 
5 and unavailable for the Board to meet.  The Fire Department has offered meeting room space for the 12 
meeting. 13 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to accept the Fire Department’s offer of 14 
Meeting space. 15 
Motion approved 4-0. 16 

 17 
C. Discussion of Public Hearings for Appropriation of Funds and Ordinances (March 11 and/or 18) 18 
Scheduling of the Public Hearings ensued.   19 
 20 
Clerk Woolfolk suggested the following meeting schedule: 21 
February 26 – Third Party Requests 22 
March 4 – School Presentation and Third-party Request Votes and other Warrant Articles 23 
March 11 – Ordinance Public Hearing and Review 24 
March 18 – Appropriations of Funds Public Hearing and Review 25 
 26 
The Board concurred with the schedule outline. 27 

 28 
IX. Treasurer’s Warrants 29 

A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 30 
Town Invoices AP#2448 2/5/2024 $970,155.93 
Total   $970,155.93 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval and signature of the Treasurer’s 31 
Warrant as shown above. 32 
Motion approved 4-0. 33 

 34 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 35 

below: 36 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits AP#2445 

1/18/2024 
$1,914.59 

 AP#2446 1/25/2024 $100,852.41 
 AP#2447 1/31/2024 $7,547.26 
Town Payroll PR#2418 1/19/2024 $111,966.96 

 PR#2419 2/2/2024 $167,612.38 
Total   $389,893.60 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, 37 
State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown above. 38 
Motion approved 4-0. 39 

 40 
 41 
 42 



 

11 
 

 

C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 1 
Warrants as shown below: 2 

School Payroll PR#15 1/19/2024 $200,157.63 
 PR#16 2/2/2024 $93,399.78 
Total   $293,557.41 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, acknowledgement of Treasurer’s Town 3 
Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll Warrants as shown above. 4 
Motion approved 4-0. 5 

 6 
Grand Total   $1,653,606.94 

 7 
X. Adjournment 8 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to adjourn. 9 
Motion approved 4-0. 10 
 11 
The Meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
________________________________ 16 
Respectfully Submitted, Geoffrey Wood 17 
 18 



APPOINTMENTS 

RECOGNITIONS 

RESIGNATIONS 

  





 

MEMO 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-4152 
www.mtdesert.org highway@mtdesert.org 

 To: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 
 From: Ben Jacobs, Public Works Superintendent 
 Re: Buildings and Grounds Opening 
  Date: February 20,2024  
 
 
 

We recently interviewed Colby Hamor who is interested in the vacant Buildings and Grounds 
position. Colby learned of the vacancy through our employees and through advertising.  

 
I would like to recommend Colby be hired to fill the vacant full-time Buildings and Grounds 
position in the Public Works Department. This recommendation is based on the information 
provided by him when you and I interviewed him and a review of his application. He presently 
holds a Class C driver’s license. Colby said he would accept an offer of employment from us if 
one was offered to him and understands his appointment is contingent on being appointed by the 
Select board to the position. He understands the Town has an agreement with Teamsters Union 
Local 340. 

 
As such, I request Colby be appointed to the vacant full time Building and Grounds effective on 
or before March 11, 2024, and, that he be appointed at the six probationary rate of pay of 
$23.28 per hour, increasing to $24.50 per hour after successfully completing the six-month 
probationary period. 

 
Thank you for your consideration of my recommendation. 

 
 
 
 
Cc.   Zach Harris, Human Resources, Durlin Lunt, Town Manager. Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:highway@mtdesert.org


 

MEMO 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-5142 
www.mtdescrt.org  highway@mtdese11.org 

 

To: 
From: 
Re: 
Date: 

Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 
Ben Jacobs, Public Works Superintendent 
Mechanic B Recommendation 
February 20, 2024 

 
As you know we will have a vacant Mechanic B position in the Public Works Department as of 
February 23, 2024. Justin Kelley filled out an interest in an open position form for the Mechanic 
B position. After a successful interview with him this morning as well as having a good 
mechanical skill set, I recommend moving him from his current position of MEO-2 to Mechanic 
B position. I also recommend there be no probationary period and his rate of pay be increased to 
$28.00 per hour plus any longevity wages he is currently eligible for. Thank you for your 
consideration. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CC. Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

http://www.mtdescrt.org/
mailto:highway@mtdese11.org


CONSENT AGENDA 

  





 

 

 TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
WARRANT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
Minutes from: 

Tuesday, January 30, 2024  6:00PM 
 
 
Northeast Harbor Meeting Hall and via Zoom  

Members Present: Phil Lichtenstein, Katrina Carter, Tim Murphy, Mike 
Olsen, Lauren Kuffler, Jamie Blaine, Stephanie Reece, Owen Craighead, 
Donna Beals, Carmen Sanford, Allan Kimmerly 

Zoom: Craig Roebuck, Jerry Miller, Kathy Miller, Rosemary Matchak 

Excused: Bill Ferm, Jesse Hartson, Megan Bailey, Blakeslee Bell 

Absent: Marina McGarr  

Guests: David Kerns, Mount Desert/Bar Harbor Police Chief; Mike Bender, 
Mount Desert Fire Chief 

1. 6:00pm  Call Meeting to order, minutes from the 1/23 meeting 
approved after a minor attendance revision.  

2. 6:05pm  Police Chief Kerns opened by clarifying that Mount Desert 
pays 40% of his salary and Bar Harbor pays the remaining 60%.  The 
Police Department budget saw an increase in IT services. Chief 
Kerns discussed the role and many benefits of the relatively new Law 
Enforcement Mental Health Liaison. The committee asked several 
questions related to new hires, staffing and staff retention.  The 
somewhat inadequate size of the Bar Harbor Department was 
discussed.  The Police Dispatch budget is relatively flat.  The Chief 
outlined how 911 calls in the area are dealt with. There is often no 
dispatcher present at the Mount Desert Station re: coverage from the  
Bar Harbor dispatch. 

3. 6:45pm  Fire Chief Mike Bender addressed the significant increases 
in the Fire Department’s budget by taking the committee through the 
history of it’s large staff expansion over the last few years plus its 



 

 

absorption of the Northeast Harbor Ambulance Service.  Since taking 
on the Ambulance service, annual calls have more than doubled from 
@ 350 calls per year to @ 750.  The Somesville station was 
renovated and has served as temporary headquarters until staff and 
equipment can move into the freshly renovated facility in Northeast 
Harbor.  Chief Bender went through the department budget line by 
line. The largest increase is overtime pay re: the need for adequate 
shift coverage in the face of a couple of staff vacancies. 

4. 7:32pm  Adjournment 
 

Upcoming Meeting: Tuesday, February 6 at 6:00pm at the meeting hall and 
by Zoom. Guests: Paul Paradis, Hancock County Commissioner; Brian 
Henkel, Mount Desert Public Works Director. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Owen Craighead Recording Secretary  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  





H.O.M.E., Inc. enhances the quality of life of people who have fallen on challenging times by honoring 
their dignity, attending to such basic needs as food and shelter, supporting their long-term health and 

development, and fostering a vibrant and mutually supportive community. 
 
 

H.O.M.E. Inc. 
Emmaus Homeless Shelter 
51 Main St. (Physical) 
P.O. Box 811 
Ellsworth, Maine, 
U.S.A. 04605 
Phone: 207-667-3962 
Fax: 207-667-1086 
Email: director@emmausshelter.org 
 
 
 
2/16/24 
 
 
Dear Select Board, `  
 
 
I am writing this letter to apologize for missing the deadline for the third-party funding request. By not 

getting our application to you by the deadline was completely my mistake for forgetting that we would 

not get an email this year as a reminder. I just want to express how grateful we have been and how 

funding from you has always been needed and appreciated. This letter to you is just my way to 

apologize and make sure that you understand that it wasn’t that we didn’t want or need funding, that it 

was my human error. Thank you and we will see you next year.  

 

If you have any questions, feel free to reach out M-F from 8-3pm at 667-3962 or email 

anytime.  

 
Thank you, 

 
Stacey Herrick, Emmaus Homeless Shelter Director 

“Serve First Those Who Suffer Most” 
Proud member of Emmaus International 

     
 

mailto:director@emmausshelter.org


 
 

 

www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-services/general-assistance 

 

Maine Department of Health and Human Services 

Office for Family Independence 

19 Maine Avenue 

Bangor, Maine 04401-3095 

Tel.: (207) 561-4333; Toll-Free: (800) 432-7825 

TTY: Dial 711 (Maine Relay); Fax: (207) 561-4493 

Janet T. Mills 

Governor 

 
Jeanne M. Lambrew, Ph.D. 

Commissioner 

 

February 22, 2024 
 
Durlin Lunt 
General Assistance Administrator 
Town of Mount Desert 
PO Box 248 
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662 
 
 

Durlin Lunt: 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of the mail-in review from the Town of Mount Desert and to advise you 
that you are in compliance with General Assistance Statutes and the Department of Health and Human 
Services’ General Assistance policy.   
 
If this office can be of any assistance, please feel free to call 1-800-442-6003, option 2 then 1. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

David Bailey 
 
David Bailey 
GA Program Specialist 
General Assistance Program 

http://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-services/general-assistance


 

NEW BUSINESS 

  











Aid Society of Otter Creek financials 2022/23 
 
Revenue: 
   Donations       $700 
 
Expense: 
   Heating oil       $3,000 
   Propane           $100 
   Insurance         $2,200 
   Electricity         $600 
 
 
 
John B Macauley, Ph.D. 
Otter Creek, Maine 
 























































































































































































































E.M.R., Inc. 
"Eastern Maine Recycling" 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste Management 

28 Main Street - P.O. Box 787 - Southwest Harbor, ME 04679-0787 - 207-244-9033 
bcw@emrswh.com – 207-460-9033 

 
TO:   James Fortune-Cranberry Isles 

Anthony Smith-Mount Desert 
Marilyn Lowell -Southwest Harbor 
Jessie Dunbar-Tremont 
Carol Walsh-Trenton  

 
FROM: Ben C. Worcester, III  

E.M.R., Inc. Vice President 
207-460-9033, bcw@emrswh.com 

 
DATE:  February 21, 2024 
 
Re:    Solid Waste Contract Renewal 
 
Over the years, EMR has enjoyed  excellent working relationships with our participating towns and is hopeful 
these relationships will continue.  EMR is willing to discuss at any time with our towns either individually or 
together the terms of the Solid Waste Contract,  transfer station operations or any solid waste concerns you may 
have. 
 
EMR is very interested in continuing our Solid Waste Contracts for the next five years.  I look forward to 
meeting with you in the near future.   
  
Please provide a copy of this memo to your Select Board members.      
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me. 
 
Thank You. 
 
 
 
 



EMR Contract Renewal & Recycling Information/2-20-24/TS Page 1 of 2 
 

ACADIA DISPOSAL DISTRICT 
182 Oak Hill Road, Mount Desert, ME 04660; 207-266-7866; 29parsonscounty@gmail.com 

  
To: Durlin Lunt, Jr., Town Manager 
From: Tony Smith, ADD Chair 
Re: EMR Contract Renewal and related Information 
Date: February 20, 2024                         . 
 
EMR Contract Renewal: As I mentioned to you by telephone a while ago, following is my 
recommendation related to renewing the Town of Mount Desert’s (the Town)  contract with the EMR 
(Eastern Maine Recycling, Inc.) transfer station located in Southwest Harbor. Each of the six ADD 
towns, including ours, entered into separate five year contracts with EMR for solid waste management, 
including transportation services, in 2019. The contract’s five year term is from July 1, 2019 through 
June 30, 2024 (FY-2020 through FY-2024), with all due to expire on June 30, 2024. 
 
In accordance with section “Section 1.0, Term” of the current contracts, all contracts will automatically 
renew on July 1, 2024, with the same five year terms and conditions, unless EMR is told otherwise. 
The specific current contract language for an automatic renewal states:  
 
1.0 Term: The term of this Agreement shall be for (5) years beginning July 1, 2019 and ending 

June 30, 2024. Each twelve-month period is a "Contract Year". This Agreement shall 
automatically renew with the same terms and conditions unless the Town provides the 
Contractor with written notice of termination by "Certified Mail" on or before March 5, 2024. 
The renewed contract term shall be from July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2029. 

 
Each ADD town must address this automatic renewal contract requirement directly with EMR. The 
automatic renewal will occur unless the individual ADD town notifies EMR on or before March 5, 
2024 in writing, and delivered by certified mail, that they do not want the contract to automatically 
renew. If an ADD town does not allow the current contract to automatically renew, it will expire on 
June 30, 2024. If this were to occur, the affected ADD town would be in the situation of having to 
develop a new contract with EMR. In my experience with EMR and the contracts we have had with 
them, they have been responsive to our needs and charged us fair pricing. 
 
Contract specifics to note: 
 
1. As has been the case with the current contract, our costs can change year to year as described in 
“Section 10.15, Escalator” of the contract. This section allows an increase or decrease to be made in 
the contract pricing effective on July 1 of each contract year based on changes to the CPI-UNE. EMR 
contacts us in writing when this adjustment is made. Such an adjustment is anticipated to go into effect 
at the beginning of the next contract year, July 1, 2024. 
 
2. With the fluctuations in the cost of fuel, “Section 10.17 Fuel Charge” allows EMR to impose a fuel 
charge for delivering solid waste to a particular location on a monthly basis. This charge is based on 
the average price of diesel fuel paid by EMR in any particular month, the distance in miles traveled 
and the amount of fuel used to make that delivery. This charge is in effect if the solid waste is being 
hauled to the facility in Hampden or to an alternative site such as the JRL landfill in Old Town. 

mailto:29parsonscounty@gmail.com


EMR Contract Renewal & Recycling Information/2-20-24/TS Page 2 of 2 
 

 
3. The current contract offers two options for recycling with EMR described in “Sections 7.3, 7.3.1 and 
7.3.2” of it. If a town wanted to recycle with EMR, they checked or circled one of the two options 
found on the signature sheet of the contract (page 19 of 19). If a town did not want either option, they 
checked or circled the line labeled “None.” That is the box the Town checked in 2019. During 
discussion of the contract prior to acting on its renewal at the May 2019 town meeting, it was agreed 
that maintaining our own recycling center was the best option for us rather than recycling with EMR or 
others. I believe this is still the case today. We can manage our costs and choose where we want our 
recyclables to go. In addition, if a town selects one of the options with EMR they are required by the 
contract to take their material there and nowhere else throughout the term of the contract. This can only 
be changed upon mutual agreement between that town and EMR. That is still the case with the 
proposed contract to be acted on at the May 2024 town meeting.  
 
In summary, I recommend that the Town opt for the automatic renewal of the contract. I also 
recommend that, even though we are not required to do so, the Town send EMR a letter delivered by 
“Certified Mail” on or before March 5, 2024 with said memo stating we are going to accept the 
automatic renewal of the contract we currently have with them. Doing so will  provide us with written 
documentation of accepting the automatic renewal should it ever be needed. I have enclosed a draft 
letter to EMR to this end for your consideration. I have also enclosed copies of the EMR contract 
warrant article approved at the May 2019 town meeting and copies of two draft warrant article options 
for consideration for use at our May 2024 town meeting should you so choose.  
 
Cardboard Recycling: I would like to point out that the ADD and EMR are working together on a 
cardboard recycling plan that, if terms are agreed to, would not be included in the five year contract but 
be a separate agreement with EMR. As with the five-year contract, participation in the cardboard 
recycling plan would be made on a town by town basis. I have asked EMR for a proposal for our 
Town. I understand the individual preparing the proposals for EMR is out of town for two weeks. I will 
report on the proposal when I receive it.  In the meantime, I have copies of proposals sent to other 
ADD towns and will review and compare them to each other and to our own current source separated 
recycling of cardboard. As of this date, the proposed plan would call for cardboard to be separated 
from trash and co-mingled recyclables and be delivered to EMR where it will be baled, stored, sold, 
and shipped when there is enough to make it cost-effective to do so.  
 
One Bin All In: As an aside, in my opinion, and would be my recommendation if asked, once the One 
Bin All In option is available at Municipal Waste Solutions in Hampden, anticipated for early 2025, 
the Town should resume sending our recyclables there. Like many other towns statewide, we have a 
very low recycling percentage rate. The State is nowhere near the 50-percent rate required by law but 
they are working to change that. The One Bin All In will greatly increase the amount of materials 
recycled if used where feasible statewide. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Enc. Draft EMR Warrant Articles; Draft Town Letter to EMR 
Cc. Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk; Brian Henkel, PE; PW Director 



Town of Mount Desert 
SOLID WASTE CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this/1.,.day of fo~2019, by and between E.M.R., 
INC., a Maine corporation having a place of business in Southwest Harbor, Hancock County, Maine, (the 
"Contractor") and the TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT, a municipal corporation duly existing under the laws of the 
State of Maine, having a principal place of business at 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor, Hancock County, Maine, 
("Town"). 

W I TN E S S ETH: 

WHEREAS, the Contractor owns and operates a solid waste transfer station, licensed by the State of 
Maine Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP"), in the Town of Southwest Harbor, Hancock County, 
Maine, (the "SWH Facility") that provides for the acceptance, storage, handling, processing, marketing and/or 
transportation of non-hazardous Solid Waste, Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic Waste, Wood Wastes, 
Construction and Demolition Debris ("COD"), Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal and White Goods, Tires, and Inert Fill. 

WHEREAS, it is understood between the Town and the Contractor that the terms and conditions as 
expressed in this agreement are such that the Contractor must have the ability to manage and operate the SWH 
Facility in conformance with the DEP, USEPA and other state and federal laws, statutes, rules and regulations. 

WHEREAS, the Contractor provides Municipal Solid Waste transportation services from the SWH 
Facility to DEP licensed waste processing and disposal facilities, such as but not limited to, Coastal Resources of 
Maine (CRM), 92 Bouchard Way, Hampden, Maine and Juniper Ridge Landfill (JRL), 2828 Bennoch Road, 
Alton, Maine and Waste Management-Crossroads (WM), 327 Mercer Road, Norridgewock, Maine. 

WHEREAS, the Town has made arrangements with CRM (Disposal Facility-MSW) for the disposal of 
Municipal Solid Waste generated by the Town. 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to enter into an agreement with the Contractor for the disposal of Solid 
Waste through the use of the SWH Facility and for the transportation of Solid Waste from the SWH Facility to DEP 
licensed facilities for those waste materials presently being transported by the Contractor including but not 
necessarily limited to Disposal Facility-COD, Disposal Facility-MSW, Disposal Facility-Recycle and Disposal 
Facility-Wood Waste for the disposal of non-hazardous Solid Waste, Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic 
Waste, Wood Wastes, Construction and Demolition Debris (COD), Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal and White Goods, 
Tires, and Inert Fill. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained, the Contractor and the Town hereby agree as follows: 

1.0 TERM: The term of this Agreement shall be for Five (5) years beginning July l, 2019 and ending June 
30, 2024. Each twelve-month period is a "Contract Year". This Agreement shall automatically renew 
with the same terms and conditions unless the Town provides the Contractor with written notice of 
termination by "Certified Mail" on or before March 5, 2024. The renewed contract term shall be from July 
1, 2024 to June 30, 2029. 

2.0 DEFINITIONS: 

The capitalized words and phrases used in this Solid Waste Contract shall have the following meanings 
(such meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such words and phrases): 

"Acadia Disposal District" means a quasi-municipal corporation duly existing under the laws of the State 
of Maine having a mailing address of P.O. Box 248, Northeast Harbor, ME 04662 whose member 
municipalities include the Towns of Cranberry Isles, Frenchboro, Mount Desert, Tremont and Trenton. 

Page 1 of 19 



"Authorized Agent" means a person, partnership or corporation that is authorized to dispose of 
Permissible Wastes at the SWH Facility on behalfofthe Town or an Authorized Individual. 

"Authorized Individual" means any person, partnership, corporation or other entity that either owns, 
rents, leases (on a permanent or temporary basis) a dwelling or operates a commercial establishment in a 
Town. 

"Bulky Waste" is a portion ofCDD and means items such as, but not limited to, mattresses, box springs, 
upholstered furniture, carpeting, floor padding and similar materials. 

"Co-mingled Containers" means recyclable containers made from polyethylene terephthalate (PETE #1), 
high density polyethylene (HDPE #2 plastic), ferrous cans and aluminum cans that contain a volume of 
one gallon or less. 

"Compostable Organic Waste" means Residential and Commercial Compostable Organic Wastes that 
have been separated from Transfer Solid Waste prior to acceptance at the SWH Facility. 

"Contract Year" means the twelve-month period beginning on July land ending on June 30. 

"Construction and Demolition Debris" ("CDD") means Solid Waste resulting from construction, 
remodeling, repair and demolition of structures, said wastes may include, but are not limited to, building 
materials, dimensioned lumber, discarded furniture, asphalt, wall board, pipes, plumbing fixtures 
such as toilets and sinks, conduits, wire, sheetrock, plaster, insulation, roofing materials, painted wood, 
pressure treated wood, packaging materials and bituminous concrete pavement. It excludes: partially 
filled containers of glues, tars, solvents, resins, paints, caulking compounds, friable asbestos and 
other special wastes. 

"Demolition Wood" is a portion ofCDD and means waste items such as, but not limited to, lumber, and 
wood items from Construction and Demolition Debris (CDD) waste. 

"Developed Parcel" means a parcel ofland located within the boundary of the Town and specifically 
identified by the Town on its tax maps with a tax map number and lot number and which said lot has 
structures or is permitted to have structures thereon. 

"Diesel Fuel Price Per Gallon" means the diesel fuel price per gallon, as published for the last week of 
the month by the Energy Information Administration (EIA) of the Department of Energy (New England 
Region), shall be used by the Contractor to calculate the diesel fuel charge for the payment categories as 
stated in section I 0.17 Fuel Charge. 

"Disposal Facility-COD" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine and licensed by the DEP 
to accept CDD, Bulky Waste, Demolition Wood Wastes and similar items. The primary Disposal Facility
CDD is Juniper Ridge Landfill, 2828 Bennoch Road, Old Town, ME 04468. The alternate Disposal 
Facility-COD is Crossroads Landfill, 357 Mercer Road, Norridgewock, ME 04597. 

"Disposal Facility-MSW" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine and licensed by the 
DEP to accept Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) which shall include Transfer Solid Waste but shall not 
include CDD, Bulky Waste, Recycle Waste, Universal Waste, Scrap Metal, White Goods and Wood 
Waste. The primary Disposal Facility-MSW is CRM. All MSW shall be taken to CRM unless otherwise 
directed by the Town's representative(s) including but not necessarily being limited to the Municipal 
Review Committee (MRC) on behalf of the Town or the Town's Selectmen or their designee(s). The 
alternate Disposal Facility-MSW recommended by the Town is Crossroads Landfill, 357 Mercer Road, 
Norridgewock, ME 04957. Before any change in Disposal Facility-MSW is made, the Contractor and the 
Town, with assistance from the MRC or the Town's Board of Selectmen or their designee(s), shall agree 
to terms including but not necessarily limited to any change in transportation costs. However, it is 
understood between the Parties that in the event the Contractor is notified by CRM or MRC that CRM is 

Page 2 of 19 



not accepting MSW on a temporary basis, the Contractor shall deliver said MSW to the alternate Disposal 
Facility-MSW. 

"Disposal Facility-Recycle" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine which is permitted to 
accept Recyclable Items which may include corrugated cardboard; mixed newspaper and magazines; co
mingled containers (one gallon or less) which may include metal (aluminum, steel, and tin) and plastic 
containers numbered l and 2. The primary Disposal Facility-Recycle is Coastal Resources of Maine, 92 
Bouchard Way, Hampden, Maine. The alternate Disposal Facility-Recycle is Pine Tree Waste - Zero Sort, 
Old Town, ME. All Recyclable Items shall be taken to CRM unless otherwise directed by the Town's 
Representative(s), said representative(s) including but not limited to the MRC or the Town's Board of 
Selectmen or their designee(s). 

"Disposal Facility-Tires" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine which is licensed by the 
DEP to accept tires. The primary Disposal Facility-Tires is BDS Waste Disposal Inc, 357 Mercer Rd., 
Norridgewock, Maine. 

"Disposal Facility-Green Wood Waste" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine which is 
licensed by the DEP to accept Green Wood and Stumps. The primary Disposal Facility-Green Wood 
Waste is Gary Pomeroy Logging, 1909 Hammond Street, Hermon, ME 04401. 

"Freon/Mercury Removal" means Scrap Metal that contains Freon or Mercury and requires the Freon or 
Mercury to be removed. 

"Green Wood" means land clearing debris that is reasonably free of stumps, soil material and rock. 

"Guaranteed Annual Tonnage" (GAT) means the minimum tonnage of Transfer Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Items and Compostable Organic Waste delivered by the Town or its Authorized Individuals to 
the Contractor in each contract year. GAT shall equal the sum of Transfer Solid Waste, Recyclable Items 
and Compostable Organic Waste. 

"Hazardous Waste" means a waste substance or material, in any physical state, designated as hazardous 
by the State of Maine Board of Environmental Protection under section 1319-0. It does not include waste 
resulting from normal household or agricultural activities. The fact that a hazardous waste or part or 
constituent may have value or other use or may be sold or exchanged does not exclude it from this 
definition. 

"Hot Load" means waste which is on fire or smoldering when delivered to the SWH Facility. 

"Inert Fill" means clean soil material, including soil from road ditching and sand from winter sand 
cleanup, rock, bricks, and cured concrete without rebar, which are not mixed with other solid or liquid 
waste, and which are not derived from an ore mining activity. 

"Land Clearing Debris" means Solid Waste resulting from the clearing ofland and consists solely of 
brush, stumps, soil material and rock. 

"Miles or Distance" means the actual road miles traveled by the Contractor from the SWH Facility to the 
disposal site. It is understood by the Town that the Contractor may be prevented by the State of Maine or 
the United States of America Departments of Transportation to use certain roads, such as Routes 95 and 
395, due to the gross vehicle weight limits imposed on roads that are less than the weight limits the 
Contractor is registered to haul. 

"Municipal Solid Waste" means solid waste emanating from household and normal commercial sources. 
Municipal Solid Waste includes front end process residue from the processing of Municipal Solid Waste. 

"Net Sale Price" means the difference between the price received from the sale of items less 
transportation and marketing expenses. 

Page 3 of 19 



"Non-Permissible Waste" means the following items are specifically excluded and not permitted for 
deposit at the SWH Facility or for transport to a Disposal Facility: toxic or highly volatile materials, used 
oil, waste oil, other petroleum products, sludge, septage, and any substance now or hereafter classified as 
Hazardous Waste or Special Waste by DEP and/or the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
("EPA"), in any quantity whatsoever. 

"Parties" means the Contractor and the Town, or those respective designees, as defined elsewhere in the 
Agreement. 

"Permissible Wastes" means only those wastes specifically permitted during the term of this Agreement 
by the DEP as acceptable at a Solid Waste facility. Wastes not permitted by the DEP must not be accepted 
at the SWH Facility. Hazardous Waste, or waste not easily identified by the Contractor as non-hazardous, 
must not be accepted at the SWH Facility. Permissible Wastes shall include Transfer Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic Waste, Wood Wastes, Construction and Demolition Debris, 
Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal, Tires, White Goods, Inert Fill, and Universal Waste. 

"Recyclable" means possessing physical and economic characteristics that allow a material to be 
recycled. 

"Recyclable Items" means the list of Recyclable Items recovered from the Transfer Solid Waste stream 
that the designated Disposal Facility-Recycle accepts. All Recyclable Items delivered to the SWH Facility 
shall be clean and in conformity to the specifications required by the Disposal Facility-Recycle. 

"Recycle" means to recover, separate, collect and reprocess waste materials for sale or reuse other than as 
fuel for the generation of heat, steam or electricity. 

"Recycling" means the collection, separation, recovery and sale or reuse of materials that would otherwise 
be disposed of or processed as waste or the mechanical separation and treatment of waste, other than 
through combustion, and the creation and recovery of reusable materials other than as fuel for the 
generation of electricity. 

"Recycling Processing Center" means a recycling center that, (l) receives commercial size deliveries of 
recyclable items, (2) uses leading-edge technology to permit the acceptance of a wider variety of 
Recyclable Items in an efficient and economical manner and (3) reduces but does not necessarily require 
the need to separate Recyclable Items by category for collection. A Recycling Processing Center may 
include Single Sort (single stream) Recycling System. 

"Scrap Metal" means bits and pieces of metal parts (such as bars, turnings, rods, sheets, and wire) or 
metal pieces that may be attached or combined together with bolts, welds or solder to form a product (such 
as scrap automobiles, radiators, or furniture) which whether worn or outdated can be recycled and which 
are not otherwise mixed with or contaminated with non-metal solid or hazardous wastes. For the purposes 
of this contract White Goods and junked vehicles shall be considered Scrap Metal. 

"Septage" means waste, refuse, effluent, sludge and any other materials from septic tanks, cesspools or 
any other similar facilities. 

"Single Sort Recycling" means a recycling method or program that permits the acceptance of Recyclable 
Items, as defined above, at the SWH Facility in a co-mingled form. The acceptable recyclable item list 
will be determined by the Disposal Facility-Recycle after discussion with the Town of any proposed 
changes, consideration of concerns they might have and upon reaching an agreement between the Parties. 

"Sludge" means nonhazardous solid, semisolid or liquid waste generated from a municipal, commercial or 
industrial wastewater treatment plant, water supply treatment plant or wet air pollution control facility or 
any waste having similar characteristics and effect. The term does not include industrial discharges that 

Page 4 of 19 



are point sources subject to permits under the federal Clean Water Act, 33 United States Code, Section 
I 342 (1999). 

"Solid Waste" means useless, unwanted or discarded solid material with insufficient liquid content to be 
free flowing, including, but not limited to, rubbish, garbage, refuse-derived fuel, scrap materials, junk, 
refuse, inert fill material and landscape refuse, but does not include hazardous waste, biomedical waste, 
septage or agricultural wastes. The fact that a Solid Waste or constituent of the waste may have value or 
other use or may be sold or exchanged does not exclude it from this definition. 

"Special Waste" means any Solid Waste generated by sources other than domestic and typical 
commercial establishments that exists in such unusual quantity or in such chemical or physical state, or 
any combination thereof, that may disrupt or impair effective waste management or threaten the public 
health, human safety or the environment and requires special handling, transportation and disposal 
procedures. Special Waste includes, but not limited to: 
A. Ash; 
B. Industrial and industrial process waste; 
C. Sludge and dewatered septage; 
D. Debris from nonhazardous chemical spills and cleanup of those spills; 
E. Contaminated soils and dredge; 
F. Asbestos and asbestos-containing waste; 
G. Sand blast grit and nonliquid paint waste; 
H. High or low pH waste; 
I. Spent filter media and residue; 
J. Shredder residue and 
K. Other waste designated by the Board of Environmental Protection, or by rule of the Department of 

Environmental Protection. 

"Solid Waste Transfer Station Services" means services which include the storage, handling, 
processing, marketing, disposal and/or transportation of Permissible Wastes to licensed Solid Waste 
disposal sites, as described herein. 

"Storage Box" means a storage box or crate that is provided by the contractor in the recycling center for 
the use by an authorized individual for the collection of small loads of Transfer Solid Waste and 
Recyclable Items. 

"Stumps" means stumps. 

"Tires" means Solid Waste consisting of any used, scrap, or otherwise discarded rubberized vehicle tires, 
including whole tires as well as products derived from the processing of whole tires, including but not 
limited to shredded or chipped or crumb rubber. 

"Transfer" means to receive, store, accumulate, and/or consolidate Solid Waste in sufficient volume to be 
able to containerize, with or without compaction, for efficient transportation to another facility. It does not 
include the transport of Solid Waste. 

"Transfer Station" means any Solid Waste facility constructed and managed for the transfer of Solid 
Waste. 

"Transfer Solid Waste" means non-hazardous Solid Waste, as defined by DEP Solid Waste Management 
Rules, as may be amended from time to time, and Permissible Waste for delivery to Disposal Facility
MSW for acceptance at CRM unless an alternative Disposal Facility-MSW has been agreed to between the 
Parties as described above in section titled Disposal Facility-MSW. 

"Universal Waste" means any waste listed in section 3.A(l3) (b) of Chapter 850, the Maine Hazardous 
Waste Management Rules, including but not limited to cathode ray tubes (CRT's); mercury-containing 
lamps; mercury-containing thermostats; metal hydride, nickel-cadmium, small sealed lead acid, lithium 

Page 5 of 19 



and mercuric and silver oxide button batteries (collectively "Batteries"); electronic wastes ("e-wastes"); 
and totally enclosed, non-leaking polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) ballasts. 

"Vegetative Wastes" means wastes consisting of plant matter. These include plant stalks, hulls, leaves, 
and tree waste processed through a wood chipper. 

"Waste Oil" means petroleum-based or synthetic oil that, through use or handling, has become unsuitable 
for its original purpose due to the presence of impurities or loss of original properties. Waste oil that 
exhibits hazardous waste characteristics, or has been contaminated with hazardous wastes in excess of 
quantities normally occurring in waste oil shall be considered hazardous waste. 

"White Goods" means large appliances, including but not limited to stoves, refrigerators, freezers, 
washing machines, clothes dryers, hot water heaters, dishwashers, and air conditioners. 

"Wood Wastes" means brush, Stumps, lumber, bark, wood chips, shavings, slabs, edgings, slash, sawdust 
and wood from production rejects that are not mixed with other Solid or liquid Waste. 

"Yard Waste" means grass clippings, leaves reasonable free of branches and other similar vegative 
matter. 

3.0 Jurisdiction and Exclusive Rights: It is agreed that the Contractor shall have the exclusive jurisdiction 
over the SWH Facility and shall designate the off-loading areas. The Town also agrees (a) that the Town 
and/or its Authorized Agents shall deliver all Permissible Wastes collected by the Town, by its Authorized 
Agents or through a contract in which the Town is a party, to the SWH Facility and (b) that the Town shall 
not compensate any person, partnership or corporation other than the Contractor for the disposal of 
Permissible Wastes except for Transfer Solid Waste delivered to the Disposal Facility by the Contractor, 
see section 11. "Payments to Disposal Facility-MSW". 

Nothing in this section shall prohibit the Town from compensating any persons, partnerships or 
corporations for waste collection services furnished by that person, partnership or corporation to the Town, 
provided that all Permissible Wastes so collected are delivered and disposed ofat the SWH Facility and 
the Town pays the Contractor the fees provided for in this Agreement. 

Nothing in this contract shall require the Town to adopt municipal "flow control" measures or require 
residents who do not utilize the Town's waste collection services to dispose of their waste at the SWH 
Facility. If a resident chooses not to dispose of wastes at the SWH Facility the Town agrees not pay any 
disposal fees of said wastes on behalf of any person, partnership or corporation other than to the 
Contractor. 

4.0 Separation of Wastes: All wastes delivered to the SWH Facility will be deposited separately in their 
individually designated off-loading areas: Transfer Solid Waste, Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic 
Waste, Green Wood Wastes, Yard Waste, CDD, Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal, Scrap Metal containing Freon 
and/or Mercury, Inert Fill, and Universal Waste. 

5.0 Size Limits: Permissible Wastes delivered to the SWH Facility shall not exceed the following dimensional 
requirements for the requisite wastes: 

5.1 Transfer Solid Waste shall not have any linear dimension greater than seven (7) feet and the sum of the 
length, width and depth shall not exceed fourteen (14) feet. 

5.2 Recyclable Items shall not contain co-mingled containers in a size greater than one ( l) gallon. 

5.3 Green Wood Wastes shall not have a linear dimension greater than eight (8) feet and the sum of the length, 
width and depth shall not exceed sixteen ( 16) feet nor weigh more than one ( 1) ton. 

5.4 CDD shall not have any linear dimension greater than eight (8) feet nor weigh more than one (1) ton. 

Page 6 of 19 



5.5 Tires shall not have a rim diameter greater than eighteen ( 18) inches or such other maximum rim diameter 
as stipulated by Disposal Facility-Tires. 

5.6 Inert Fill shall not have any linear dimension greater than six (6) feet nor weigh more than one (1) ton. 

6.0 Tonnage and Record Keeping: 

6.1 SWH Facility: It is agreed that Transfer Solid Waste deposited at the SWH Facility will be transported to 
the Disposal Facility-MSW as a composite of Transfer Solid Waste generated by the Town in addition to 
tonnages contributed by other sources including, but not limited to, ADD Member municipalities, Acadia 
National Park, and other municipalities in Mount Desert Island region. 

6.2 Guaranteed Annual Tonnage: It is agreed that the Town will deliver to the Contractor the minimum tons 
in each contract year, as shown in "Exhibit A, Guaranteed Minimum Tonnage". Guaranteed Annual 
Tonnages ("GAT") shall equal the sum of the tonnage of Transfer Solid Waste, Recyclable Items and 
Compostable Organic Waste delivered to the SWH Facility by the Town, its Authorized Agents or its 
Authorized Individuals. 

6.3 Weighing of Tonnage: It is agreed that the following distinct classes of wastes will be weighed, by the 
Contractor, on the Contractor's scales located at the SWH Facility, and that each weighment will be for a 
distinct class of waste: Transfer Solid Waste, Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic Waste, Demolition 
Wood, Green Wood Waste, Stumps, CDD, Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal and White Goods (may contain 
Freon and/or Mercury), and Inert Fill. All Permissible Waste tonnage shall be weighed by town of origin. 
The Contractor is contemplating adding a second motor truck scale for weighing vehicles delivering 
Permissible Wastes. In the event a second motor truck scale is added to the SWH Facility the Contractor 
will use one motor truck scale to weigh vehicles entering the SWH Facility and the second motor truck 
scale to weigh vehicle exiting the SWH Facility. The difference in the weights obtained from the two 
motor truck scales is the net weight of the Permissible Waste delivered. In the event one of the motor 
truck scales requires inspection, certification, maintenance or is not serviceable for whatever the reason the 
other motor truck scale will be used to weigh vehicles as they enter and exit the SWH Facility. In the 
event both motor truck scales are not serviceable the Contractor will use its best judgment to determine the 
net weight of the loads being delivered to the SWH Facility. The Contactor will use its best efforts to 
correct the problem and have the motor scale(s) operating as soon as possible. 

6.3.1 Transfer Solid Waste Tonnage: Transfer Solid Waste tonnage shall be weighed individually by town of 
origin. The Contractor shall calculate the Town's fraction or percentage of the total Transfer Solid Waste 
tonnage received at the SWH Facility by dividing the tonnage of Transfer Solid Waste received at the 
SWH Facility from the Town during that month by the total Transfer Solid Waste tonnage received at the 
SWH Facility from all the Towns and other sources for that month. That fraction or percentage when 
multiplied by the total Transfer Solid Waste tonnage delivered to Disposal Facility-MSW by the 
Contractor for that month, as substantiated by Disposal Facility-MSW scale tickets, shall be the tonnage 
the Contractor uses to calculate the Town's SWH Facility Transfer Station Fee for that month. 

6.3.2 Recyclable Item Tonnage: Recyclable Items tonnage shall be weighed by Town of origin. 

6.4 Record Keeping: The Contractor shall provide the Town with a record of tonnage received at the SWH 
Facility for wastes the Town is responsible for payment. All charges to the Town will be substantiated by 
the Contractor's scale ticket. Each scale ticket will state the date, the type of waste, the gross, tare and net 
weights. The Contractor shall invoice the Town monthly. The charges stated in said monthly invoices 
shall be substantiated by the Contractor's scale ticket for those Solid Waste items that require weighing. 
The Contractor will additionally provide the ADD with a copy of the ADD member Towns ' monthly 
invoice. Each invoice shall state the date, the monthly tonnage for each Solid Waste item and the amount 
charged. The Contractor will accept all Permissible Waste tonnages delivered to the SWH Facility that 
have been authorized by the Town to the extent that the Permissible Waste tonnage is acceptable to 
Disposal Facility-COD, Disposal Facility-MSW, Disposal Facility-Recycle, Disposal Facility-Tires or 

Page 7 of 19 



Disposal Facility-Green Wood Waste and to the extent that the Contractor's DEP permit will allow. The 
scales located at the SWH Facility that are used to weigh Solid Waste accepted at the SWH Facility shall 
be certified by the State of Maine or its authorized representative. The Contractor shall arrange to have its 
scales calibrated annually. Scale certification shall be posted at the scale house located at the SWH 
Facility and may be inspected during normal working hours. 

The Contractor is contemplating computerizing the motor truck scales used to weigh wastes that are 
delivered to the SWH Facility. In the event the contractor does computerize its motor truck scale(s) the 
Town agrees to receive a Scale Ticket Summary report listing scale ticket information (such as Date, 
Waste Type, Ticket#, Time IN, Time OUT, Gross weight, Tare weight, Net weight, Transporter and 
Landowner) with the monthly statement instead of receiving each scale ticket attached to the statement. 
The original scale tickets may be reviewed by the Town at the Contractor's place of business, during 
normal business hours. 

7.0 SWH Facility Services and Procedures: It is understood between the parties that the Contractor will 
accept for disposal at the SWH Facility the Permissible Wastes delivered by the Town, its Authorized 
Agents or Authorized Individuals. The attendant will then direct the transporter of the Permissible Waste 
to the individually designated off-loading areas located within the SWH Facility. 

From time to time new technologies and programs may become available that have the potential to 
enhance or improve how a service is provided under this contract. In the event the Contractor, the Town 
or the ADD has identified such a technology or program that they wish to discuss with the other parties 
that may require a change to the contract to permit the use of said technology or program, the Contractor, 
the Town or the ADD shall inform the other parties of such new technology or program in writing. Upon 
receipt of said written notice the parties agree to discuss the use of such technology or program. If after 
thorough discussion of the proposed use of said technology or program it is decided between the Parties to 
proceed with the use of said technology or program the Contractor shall add the use of said technology or 
program to section 9 Rules and Regulations provided section 10 Payment is not to be adjusted or other 
provisions of this contract are not in conflict with use of said technology or program. However, if section 
10 Payments or other provisions in this contract other than section 9 Rules and Regulations require 
amending; the parties agree to use their best efforts to negotiate an amendment to permit the use of said 
technology or program prior to the Contractor's implementation of the use of said technology or program . 

The purpose of the following descriptions of services and procedures is to illustrate how the Contractor 
intends to perform the services provided for in this contract, however, it is understood between the parties 
that the Contractor shall have the ability to change or alter the procedure in which a particular service is 
performed, if in the opinion of the Contractor that the change or alteration of how the service to be 
performed will allow for a more effective or efficient service or permit the performance of the service in 
compliance with federal, state and municipal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and the change or 
alteration will not result in an increase in the fees charged the Town. 

7.1 Transfer Solid Waste: Two individually designated areas of the SWH Facility have been reserved for the 
off-loading and storage of Transfer Solid Waste. Transfer Solid Waste containers are in the Recycling 
Center for the acceptance of small individual loads of Transfer Solid Waste. There is at least one 
collection container for the Town. The collection containers shall be weighed and then emptied into the 
Transfer Station on an as-full basis. All large (pickup truck or larger) deliveries of Transfer Solid Waste 
will be directed to the Transfer Station for deposit. The co-mingling of Transfer Solid Waste with another 
Town prior to delivery to the SWH Facility shall not be permitted, except on the day before or after a legal 
holiday, a day when Disposal Facility-MSW is closed or on such other days as the Town permits. When a 
sufficient quantity of Transfer Solid Waste has accumulated in the Transfer Station said Transfer Solid 
Waste will be processed and prepared for shipment to Disposal Facility-MSW. 

7.2 Tires: A specifically designated off-loading area of the SWH Facility has been reserved for the disposal 
of tires. Tires shall have rims removed prior to acceptance at the SWH Facility. He Town shall not be 
charged for tire rims. The attendant will weigh the tires and direct the transporter of the Permissible Waste 
to the designated off-loading area. In the event Disposal Facility-Tires or MDEP classifies Tires as Non-

Page 8 of19 



Permissible Transfer Solid Waste items, the Contractor shall not be required to accept Tires at the SWH 
Facility. 

7.3 Recycling: The Disposal Facility-Recycle provides two options for recycling. The Town shall choose 
one (1) either option #1 or option #2. 

7.3.1 Single Sort Recycling (Option# 1): An individually designated area of the SWH Facility has been 
reserved for the collection and storage of Single Sort Recyclable Items. Collection containers for the off
loading of Single Sort Recyclable Items are in the recycling center but are accessed from outside the 
recycling center from the parking lot. On an as-full basis, the collection containers will be weighed on a 
platform scale and a scale ticket will be prepared that indicates the Town of origin, the type of material, 
the gross, tare and net weights. Full containers will then be stored for further processing. When a 
sufficient quantity of Single Sort Recyclable Items has been collected it will then be processed for 
shipment. The Single Sort Recyclable Items shall conform to the acceptable recycling guidelines of the 
Disposal Facility- Recycle. 

7.3.2 Recycling Option #2: Disposal Facility-Recycle has constructed what is called a MRF (Material 
Recovery Facility). A MRF is a materials sorting system that separates recyclable items and reuse items 
from MSW. If Recycling option #2 is chosen all recyclable items need not be sorted from MSW and shall 
be delivered to the SWH Facility in a combined form and then delivered to the Disposal Facility-MSW. 
The Disposal Facility-MSW will then separate the acceptable recyclable items from the MSW Waste 
Stream. In the event the Town chooses Option #2 the Contractor will consider all recyclables delivered to 
the SWH Facility as MSW and manage and charge for them accordingly. 

7.4 Compostable Organic Waste: A specifically designated off-loading area of the SWH Facility has been 
reserved for the disposal, processing, curing and storage ofCompostable Organic Waste. The attendant 
will weigh the Compostable Organic Waste and direct the transporter of the Permissible Waste to the 
designated off-loading area. The Compostable Organic Waste will be processed and cured in accordance 
with the DEP regulations. When the Compostable Organic Waste is cured it will be offered for sale as a 
soil amendment. It is understood that the Contractor will compost Compostable Organic Wastes delivered 
to the SWH Facility during that portion of the year (spring through fall) that the DEP permits the 
composting of Compostable Organic Wastes; however, Compostable Organic Wastes delivered to the 
SWH Facility during that portion of the year when composting is not permitted will be considered 
Transfer Solid Waste and directed to the Transfer Solid Waste off-loading area for disposal. 

7.5 Wood Wastes: Two (2) specifically designated off-loading areas of the SWH Facility have been reserved 
for the off-loading, storage and processing of Wood Wastes (green wood and stumps). The attendant will 
weigh the Wood Wastes and direct the transporter to the designated off-loading area. Wood Wastes will 
be stored at the site until a sufficient quantity has accumulated, and then the Wood Wastes will be 
processed and prepared for shipment. There will be no open burning of Wood Wastes at the SWH 
Facility. Demolition Wood is a portion of and is included with CDD. 

7.6 Construction and Demolition Debris (CDD): A specifically designated off-loading area of the SWH 
Facility has been reserved for the off-loading, storage, sorting and processing ofCDD. The attendant will 
weigh the CDD and direct the transporter to the designated off-loading area. CDD will be stored at the 
site until a sufficient quantity has accumulated, and then the said waste materials will be processed and 
prepared for shipment to an off-site MDEP licensed CDD disposal facility. 

7.7 Bulky Waste: Bulky Waste is a portion ofCDD and shall be off-loaded at the CDD off-loading area of 
the SWH Facility. The attendant will weigh the Bulky Waste and direct the transporter to the CDD off
loading area. 

7.8 Scrap Metal and White Goods: There are two specifically designated off-loading areas of the SWH 
Facility that have been reserved for the off-loading and storage of Scrap Metal and White Goods. The 
attendant will direct the Authorized Individual delivering Scrap Metal and White Goods to either the 

Page 9 of 19 



specifically designated Freon/Mercury Removal off-loading area or the specifically designated Scrap 
Metal and White Goods off-loading area. 

7.9 Freon/Mercury Removal Off-Loading Area: Scrap Metal and White Goods that contain either Freon or 
Mercury such as refrigerators, freezers, air conditioners, gas stoves etc., that do not have an official sticker 
affixed stating that all Freon and/or Mercury has been properly removed shall be directed to the 
specifically designated off-loading area for Freon/Mercury removal. When sufficient quantities have been 
collected removal of Freon and/or Mercury will be arranged. Once Freon and/or Mercury removal is 
complete said Scrap Metal and White Goods will be removed to the specifically designated Scrap Metal 
and White Goods off-loading area for storage and prepared for shipment. 

7.10 Scrap Metal and White Goods Off-loading Area: The attendant will direct all deliveries of Scrap Metal 
and White Goods not containing Freon and/or Mercury to the Scrap Metal and White Goods off-loading 
area. Scrap Metal and White Goods will be stored at the site until a sufficient quantity of Scrap Metal and 
White Goods has accumulated, and then the Scrap Metal and White Goods will be processed and prepared 
for shipment. 

7.11 Inert Fill: A specifically designated off-loading area of the SWH Facility has been reserved for the off
loading oflnert Fill. The attendant will direct the transporter to the Inert Fill off-loading area. 

7.12 Universal Waste: Universal Waste will be accepted at the SWH Facility on the second Saturday of each 
month between the hours of 9:00 am and I :00 pm for disposal. A specifically designated off-loading area 
of the SWH Facility has been reserved for the off-loading of Universal Waste. The attendant will direct 
the Authorized Individuals delivering Universal Waste to the specifically designated off-loading area. At 
the off-loading area the Contractor or its agent shall accept, weigh if necessary, collect associated 
Universal Waste disposal fees and prepare the Universal Waste for storage and shipment. 

In the event Recycling technologies, systems or programs become available to the Contractor, which in the 
opinion of the Contractor would enhance the Recycling program presently provided, the Contractor may 
employ said Recycling technologies, systems or programs. The Parties agree to negotiate, in good faith, 
an appropriate fee change whenever the Parties have agreed that the Contractor should employ new 
Recycling technologies, systems or programs. 

7.13 Hot Loads: A specifically designated Hot Loads area has been reserved for the off-loading of Hot Loads. 
The attendant will direct the transporter to the Hot Load off-loading area. 

8.0 SWH Facility Hours of Operation: The Contractor agrees to accept Permissible Wastes from the Town, 
its Authorized Agents or its Authorized Individuals for disposal at the SWH Facility in accordance with 
the schedule listed below: 

For the period from May I through October 31 of each Contract Year: 

Monday through Friday: Between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 

Saturday: Between 8:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. 

For the period from November I through April 30 of each Contract Year: 

Monday through Friday: 
Saturday: 

Between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. 
Between 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 

Sundays and Holidays: The SWH Facility will be closed on Sundays, legal holidays, or when CRM is 
closed. 

Page 10 of 19 



9.0 Rules & Regulations: The Town agrees to observe and conform to such reasonable rules and regulations 
as the Contractor may establish from time to time for the efficient and/or safe use of the SWH Facility. 
Rules and Regulations established by the Contractor for the operation of the SWH Facility shall conform 
to all federal, state and local statutes, regulations and ordinances. In the event the Contractor determines a 
change in rules and regulations is necessary, the Contractor shall provide the Town with written 
notification at least thirty (30) day prior to the date when the new or revised rules and regulations change 
will be implemented. In the event the Town disagrees with the implementation of the proposed rules and 
regulations changes, the Town and the Contractor agree to negotiate in good faith and use their best efforts 
to resolve the disagreement as soon as possible. 

10.0 Payment: It is agreed that the Town will pay the Contractor the fees, as stated in sub-sections listed 
below, for those Permissible Wastes delivered to the SWH Facility by the Town, Its Authorized Agents or 
its Authorized Individuals: 
10.1 Access Fee, 
10.2 SWH Facility Transfer Station Fee, 
10.3 Recycling Center Fees Option #1, 
10.4 Recycling Center Transportation Fee Option #1, 
10.5 Compostable Organic Waste Fee, 
10.6 Tires, 
10.13 Universal Waste Program Fee and 
10.16 Small Load Fee 

It is also agreed that the Town will pay the Contractor the fees for Permissible Wastes delivered to the 
SWH Facility by the Town, as stated in the sub-sections below: 
10.7 Green Wood Fee, 
10.8 Stumps Fee, 
10.9 COD Fee, 
l 0.10 Scrap Metal and White Goods Fee, 
l 0.11 Freon/Mercury Removal Fee and 
10.12 Inert Fill Fee 

It is also understood that Authorized Individuals shall pay directly to the Contractor for Permissible Waste 
tonnage that exceeds the tonnage permitted in sub-section l 0.16 Small Load Fee, based upon the 
prevailing fee schedule at the time the Permissible Waste is accepted at the SWH Facility and not 
according to the fee schedule below and that the Town shall have no liability to the Contractor for such 
amounts. The Contractor shall invoice the Town on a monthly basis in accordance with the Pricing and 
Rate Schedule, see "Exhibit A", and the Town shall pay said invoices within thirty (30) days of said 
invoice. In the event the Town does not pay said invoice within thirty (30) days from the date of the 
statement the Town agrees to additionally pay the Contractor eighteen (l 8%) percent per annum until the 
statement amount is received by the Contractor. 

The Town shall additionally pay the Contractor a fuel charge, as calculated in sub-section I 0.17 Fuel 
Charge, said fuel charge shall be added to the fees as stated in sub-sections below: 
10.2 SWH Facility Transfer Station Fee, 
l 0.4 Recycling Center Transportation Fee Option #1, 
10.5 Tires, 
10.6 Demolition Wood, 
10.7 Green Wood Fee, 
l 0.8 Stumps Fee, 
10.9 COD Fee, 
10.10 Bulky Waste Fee, 
10.11 Scrap Metal and White Goods Fee. 

Pricing and Rate Schedule for Sections 10.1 through 10.13: See Exhibit "A" attached. 

Page 11 of 19 



10.14 Hot Loads Fee: The Contractor may additionally charge the Town a reasonable fee to defray additional 
expenses involved with disposing of Hot Loads. 

10.15 Escalator: In the event there is an increase or decrease in the United States Department of Labor, Bureau 
of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index, All Urban Consumers for the Northeast Region ("CPI-UNE"), 
the fees listed in sub-sections: 
IO. I Access Fee, 
10.2 SWH Facility Transfer Station Fee, 
10.3 Recycling Center Fees Option #1, 
10.4 Recycling Center Transportation Fee Option #1 , 
10.5 Compostable Organic Waste Fee, 
10.6 Tires, 
10.7 Green Wood Fee, 
10.8 Stumps Fee, 
10.9 CDD Fee, 
10.10 Scrap Metal and White Goods Fee, 
IO.I I Freon/Mercury Removal Fee, 
10.12 Inert Fill Fee and 
10.13 Universal Waste Fee 
shall increase or decrease at the beginning of the next Contract Year, after the first Contract Year, by the 
change in said CPI-UNE, between the month of May for the prior year and the month of May for the 
Contract Year. In the event this Agreement is renewed as stated in section I. (Term), it is understood 
between the parties that the fees charged by the Contractor as stated in Section 10.0 Payment will be 
adjusted in accordance with the escalator and that any extension of the term will create new Contract 
Years. 

10.16 Small Load Fee: The Town agrees to pay the Contractor for disposal ofup to two thousand (2000) pounds 
of Demolition Wood, Green Wood, Stumps, CDD, Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal and White Goods (including 
Freon/Mercury removal fee), and Inert Fill, per Developed Parcel delivered to the SWH Facility by any 
Authorized Individual in any calendar year in accordance with the fees as stated in sub-sections: 
10.6 Tires, 
10.7 Green Wood Fee, 
10.8 Stumps Fee, 
10.9 CDD Fee, 
IO.IO Scrap Metal and White Goods Fee, 
IO .11 Freon/Mercury Removal Fee and 
10.12 Inert Fill Fee. 
The Contractor will record the type of waste, the tonnage, the location of the developed parcel from which 
the waste originated and the name of the Authorized Individual delivering said waste to the SWH Facility. 
In the event more than two thousand (2000) pounds of Permissible Wastes are delivered to the SWH 
Facility in any calendar year for a specific developed parcel by an Authorized Individual, said Authorized 
Individual shall pay directly to the Contractor for all the tonnage in excess of the two thousand (2000) 
pounds in accordance with the Contractors then-prevailing fee schedule. 

10.17 Fuel Charge: In addition to the fees required above in this section there shall be a fuel charge as 
calculated below. The chart below states the number gallons of diesel fuel required to transport one load 
of the solid waste one mile, as shown in the payment categories below, from the SWH Facility to the 
designated disposal site and return to the SWH Facility. 

Payment Sub-Sections 
10.17.1 Tractor Trailer Unit w/ a Gross Vehicle Weight of 80,000 pounds or more 
10.17.2 Roll-Off Truck Container Unit w/ a Gross Vehicle Weight of 68,000 pounds or more 

Gallons/mile 
.23 gallons/mile 
.18 gallons/mile 

Below is a list of Round-Trip Mileages from the SWH Facility to the most frequently used Disposal 
Facilities; 

SWH Facility to CRM 104 miles 

Page 12 of 19 



SWH Facility to JRL 
SWH Facility to AIM 
SWH Facility to WM 
SWH Facility to BDS 
SWH Facility to PERC 

138 
116 
232 
232 
104 

It is agreed that the Contractor shall calculate the Fuel Charge per load each month by multiplying the 
gallons/mile, as shown in each of the payment sub-sections (10.17.1 through 10.17.2) listed above, by the 
Diesel Fuel Price per Gallon. The Diesel Fuel Price per Gallon shall be the US On-Road Diesel Fuel Price 
as published for the last week of the month by the Energy Information Administration (EIA) of the 
Department of Energy (New England PADDlA) for the month. The Fuel Charge for the month for each 
payment sub-section (10.17. l through 10.17.2) is then calculated by multiplying the gallons/mile (sub
section 10.17.1 or 10.17.2) by the Round -Trip Mileage. This product equals the number of gallons of 
diesel fuel required to deliver one load of solid waste from the SWH Facility to the Disposal Facility and 
return to the SWH Facility. The number of gallons of diesel fuel is then multiplied by the Diesel Fuel 
Price per Gallon. 

Sample Calculation (Transfer Solid Waste): If the Contractor delivers one (I) Tractor/trailer load of 
Transfer Solid Waste from the SWH Facility to CRM in the month of January and the average price paid 
by the Contractor for US On-Road Diesel Fuel for the month was $2.75 per gallon the Fuel Charge is 
calculated as follows. 

0.23 gallons/mile (10.17.l) X 104 miles= 23.92 gallons diesel fuel 

23.92 gallons X $2.75 price per gallon= $65.78 (Fuel Charge) 

The following fee categories have no fuel charge: 10. l Access Fee, 10.3. l SWH Recycling Center Fee, 
10.4 Compostable Organic Waste, 10.11 Freon/Mercury Removal, 10.12 Inert Fill, 10.13 Universal Waste 
and l O .14 Hot Loads. 

10.18 Surcharge: In the event, the cost of an item, other than fuel , or service that is necessary or required by 
this contract for the performance of this contract increases by more than fifteen (15%) percent in any 
contract year, the Contractor and the Town agree to use their best efforts to negotiate a reasonable increase 
in the rates affected to compensate the Contractor for said increase. The Contractor will provide a copy of 
written documentation of said increase from the provider of the item or service to the Town. 

10.19 Wait Time Fee: The Contractor expects to arrive at the Disposal Facility-MSW and depart the Disposal 
Facility-MSW within one (I) hour. In the event the difference in arrival and departure time is greater than 
one (l) hour the Contractor may additionally charge Twenty-five ($25.00) dollars for each 15-minute 
interval in excess of one (l) hour. The Town shall additionally pay the Contractor the Town's share of the 
Wait Time Fee. The Town's share of the Wait Time Fee shall be calculated in the same manner as the 
Town's share of the total Transfer Solid Waste delivered to the Disposal Facility-MSW for the same 
month the Wait Time Fee occured as described in section l 1.0. 

11.0 Payments to Disposal Facility-MSW: It is agreed by the parties that the Town, and not the Contractor, 
shall pay Disposal Facility-MSW disposal fees directly to Disposal Facility-MSW. The Contractor shall 
prepare monthly statements showing the Town' s share of the weekly invoices that Disposal Facility-MSW 
have provided the Contractor for the Transfer Solid Waste delivered by the Contractor. The statements 
shall be prepared as follows: 

11.1 The Contractor, after receipt of the weekly Disposal Facility-MSW invoices for each month, shall 
calculate the Town's share of the total Transfer Solid Waste and delivered to said Disposal Facilities by 
dividing the tonnage of Transfer Solid Waste received at the SWH Facility from the Town during that 
month by the total Transfer Solid Waste tonnage received at the SWH Facility during said month. That 
fraction or percentage, when multiplied by the total of the invoices from Disposal Facility-MSW for that 
month, will provide the amount owed by the Town each month directly to Disposal Facility-MSW For 

Page 13 of 19 



example: If(a) the Town delivers 100 tons of Transfer Solid Waste in a month, (b) the total Transfer 
Solid Waste received that month is 400 tons, and (c) the Disposal Facility-MSW invoices for the month 
total $18,000-the amount due from the Town to Disposal Facility-MSW that month is $4,500. 

11.1.1 After completing those calculations each month, the Contractor will deliver to the Town, either in person, 
via e-mail or via U.S. Mail, copies of (a) the weekly invoices received from Disposal Facility-MSW, (b) a 
sheet showing the total Transfer Solid Waste received that month, as well as the Transfer Solid Waste 
Tonnage received from the Town that month, and (c) a statement prepared by the Contractor showing the 
calculation of the amounts owed by each town to Disposal Facility-MSW. 

11.1.2 To ensure that the Contractor receives the income under this Contract as anticipated by these parties, the 
Town agrees (a) that all Permissible Wastes collected in the Town on behalfofthe Town shall be 
delivered to the Contractor's SWH Facility, and (b) that the Town shall not pay to the Disposal Facility
CDD, Disposal Facility-MSW, Disposal Facility-Recycle, Disposal Facility-Tires and Disposal Facility
Green Wood Waste disposal fees other than those attributable to Permissible Wastes delivered by the 
Contractor except the Town may pay the Disposal Facility-Recycle for Single Sort Recycling (Option#!) 
delivered by the Town or its authorized agents to the Disposal Facility-Recycle. In the event the Town or 
its authorized agent delivers a condemned recycle load the Town shall contact the Contractor regarding the 
disposition of the condemned load. The Town shall not pay disposal fees for Recycling Option #2 
delivered to the Disposal Facility-Recycle by the Town or its authorized agents. 

11.2 In the event Disposal Facility-MSW refuses to accept delivery of Transfer Solid Waste by the Contractor 
due to non-payment by the Town for its share of the Disposal Facility-MSW fees as calculated above, the 
Town agrees to the following: 

11.2.1 After the Contractor has been notified by Disposal Facility-MSW of its refusal to accept deliveries of 
Transfer Solid Waste from the Town, the Contractor shall verify with the Town of said non-payment and 
inform the Town that deliveries of Transfer Solid Waste from the Town to the SWH Facility will not be 
accepted until the Contractor has been notified by Disposal Facility-MSW that the non-payment issue has 
been resolved between the Town and Disposal Facility-MSW. Upon receipt of said notification the 
Contractor shall resume acceptance of Transfer Solid Waste from the Town at the SWH Facility and 
resume deliveries of Transfer Solid Waste to Disposal Facility-MSW. 

11.2.2 To compensate the Contractor as if the Transfer Solid Waste had been delivered and to additionally 
compensate the Contractor for all other expenses incurred by the Contractor due to the Contractor's refusal 
to accept said delivery of Transfer Solid Waste by Disposal Facility-MSW. Said expenses incurred by the 
Contractor may include but not be limited to additional wait time, transportation or Disposal Facility
MSW disposal fees paid by the Contractor for the Town. 

11.2.3 The Contractor's refusal to accept Transfer Solid Waste from the Town, its Authorized Agents or 
Authorized Individuals at the SWH Facility shall not be considered a breach or default of this contract. 
The Town shall resolve said non-payment issues with Disposal Facility-MSW as soon as possible so the 
Contractor may resume the acceptance of Transfer Solid Waste from the Town, its Authorized Agents and 
Authorized Individuals at the SWH Facility and deliver said Transfer Solid Waste to Disposal Facility
MSW. 

11.2.4 The Town shall use its best efforts to satisfactorily resolve the matter of non-payment with Disposal 
Facility-MSW as soon as possible. 

11.2.S Payments for Disposal Facility-Recycle Option #1: It is agreed by the parties that the Town, and not the 
Contractor, shall pay Disposal Facility-Recycle (option #1) disposal fees directly to Disposal Facility
Recycle .It is agreed by the Parties that the Contractor shall also prepare monthly statements showing the 
Town's share of the weekly invoices that Disposal Facility-Recycle have provided the Contractor for the 
Single Sort Recycling items (Option #1) delivered by the Contractor. The Parties agree to conform to the 

Page 14 of 19 



terms and conditions of sections 11 .0 through 11.2.4 as if it were written for Disposal Facility-Recycle 
(Option #1) . 

12.0 Alternate Disposal Sites. 

12.1 Transfer Solid Waste: In the event CRM the primary Disposal Facility-MSW is not available to the 
Contractor and an alternate Disposal Facility-MSW must be used, the Contractor agrees to use the 
alternate Disposal Facility-MSW as directed by the Town or its agent or designee, including but not 
necessarily limited to the MRC. The Town agrees to additionally pay the contractor ($0.16) per ton per 
mile for the difference in round-trip road miles from the primary Disposal Facility-MSW and to the 
alternate Disposal Facility-MSW. 

12.2 Green Wood Wastes: In the event the primary Disposal Facility-Green Wood Waste in not available to 
the contractor, the contractor shall use its best efforts to locate an alternate Disposal Facility-Green Wood 
Waste that accepts Green Wood Wastes at the Green Wood Waste specifications the Contractor presently 
produces. The Town agrees to additionally pay the contractor one ($0. 16) per ton per mile for the 
difference in round-trip road miles from the SWH Facility to the primary Disposal Facility-Green Wood 
Waste and to the alternate Disposal Facility-Green Wood Waste for the Green Wood Waste that Town or 
its authorized agents delivered to the SWH Facility. 

12.3 CDD: In the event the primary Disposal Facility-COD in not available to the contractor, the contractor 
shall use its best efforts to locate an alternate Disposal Facility-COD that accepts CDD at the CDD 
specifications the Contractor presently produces. In the event there are no Disposal Facility-COD located 
within seventy (70) road miles of the SWH Facility, the Contractor shall use its best efforts to locate an 
alternate Disposal Facility-COD. If the alternate Disposal Facility-COD is more than seventy (70) road 
miles from the SWH Facility. The Town agrees to additionally pay the contractor one ($0.16) per ton per 
mile for the difference in round-trip road miles from the SWH Facility to the primary Disposal Facility
CDD and to the alternate Disposal Facility-COD for the CDD that Town or its authorized agents delivered 
to the SWH Facility. 

12.4 No Alternative Site Available: In the event an alternate Disposal Facility for a specific Permissible 
Waste is not found in the State of Maine, the Contractor may combine said Permissible Waste with 
another Permissible Waste to the extent the Alternate Disposal Facility will accept the mixture of the 
Permissible Wastes 

13.0 Insurance. 

13.1 Contractor Insurance: The Contractor, at its own expense, shall maintain the following insurance 
policies during the term of this Agreement and shall provide the Town evidence of coverage as applicable, 
with certificates of coverage of insurance naming the Town as an additional insured for each contract year 
of this contract. 

13.1.1 Commercial General Liability Policy with minimum coverage for completed products and operations in 
the amount of Two Million ($2,000,000.00) dollars for injury or death to one person and One Million 
($1,000,000.00) dollars for any single accident. 

13.1.2 Automobile Liability Policy on all vehicles used to provide services under this Agreement with minimum 
limits of One Million ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence. 

13.1.3 Workers Compensation Policy covering all employees of the Contractor used to provide services under 
this Agreement in accordance with Maine law. 

13.2 Town Insurance: Town shall provide the Contractor with evidence, in the form of certificates of coverage 
of insurance, that the Town making waste deliveries to the SWH Facility has obtained self-insurance risk 
pool coverage or insurance coverage in amounts required by law to cover claims arising out of the Town's 
operation of motor vehicles at the SWH Facility. 

Page 15 of 19 



14.0 

15.0 

15.1 

15.1.1 

15.1.2 

15.1.3 

15.1.4 

15.2 
15.2.1 
15.2.2 

15.2.3 

15.2.4 

15.3 
15.3.1 

15.3.2 

15.3.3 

15.4 
15.4.1 

Subcontract: It is understood that from time to time the Contractor may choose to subcontract portions of 
this Agreement to third parties who are not a party to, and are not bound by, the terms of this Agreement 
to provide the Town with the services contemplated by this Agreement. The Contractor shall at all times 
remain responsible to the Town for performance of this Contract, notwithstanding any such assignment. 

Default; Termination. 

Default by the Contractor: 

The Contractor shall be in default if it fails to provide the Substantive Services required in this Contract, 
unless such failure is caused by (i) a change in laws or regulations of the Maine Department of 
Environmental Protection, the United States Environmental Protection Agency, or other governmental 
entity or agency, (ii) Force Majeure as provided below, or (iii) eminent domain. 
Substantive Services are only those services that, if they are not performed, would substantially impede 
the Town's ability to dispose of its Permissible Wastes and Recyclable Items. 
If the Town believes that the Contractor is in default, the Town shall provide the Contractor with notice 
itemizing the substantive service(s) that it has failed to provide, and the Town shall invite the Contractor to 
meet and discuss those items. 
If the parties cannot resolve those items to their mutual satisfaction, they shall engage the services of a 
disinterested alternative dispute resolution arbitrator who will render a binding ruling as to whether the 
Contractor has failed to provide Substantive Services and is in default; 

Default by the Towns: 
The Town shall be in default ifit fails to meet its Substantive Obligations required under this Contract. 
Substantive Obligations include failure to pay to the Contractor any sums owed to it, as well as those 
obligations that would substantially impede the Contractor's ability to manage the SWH Facility or to 
deliver Transfer Solid Waste to Disposal Facility-MSW and other Solid Waste disposal facilities used by 
the Contractor. 
If the Contractor believes the Town is in default, the Contractor shall provide the Town with notice 
itemizing the substantive obligations that it has failed to perform, and the Contractor shall invite the 
representative of the Town to meet and discuss those items. 
If the parties cannot resolve those items to their mutual satisfaction, they shall engage the services of a 
disinterested alternative dispute resolution arbitrator who will render a binding ruling as to whether the 
Town has failed to perform Substantive Obligations and is in default; 

Remedies Available to the Town: 
If the Contractor is in default as provided above, for a reason not caused by (i) a change in laws or 
regulations of the Maine Department of Environmental Protection, the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, or any other governmental entity or agency, (ii) Force Majeure, or (iii) eminent 
domain, the Contractor shall have thirty (30) days to cure the default found by the arbitrator or agreed by 
the parties. 
If the Contractor cannot cure the default within thirty (30) days, but will be able to do so within the 
hundred twenty (120) days, the Town may enter into a temporary agreement with another person or entity 
to provide those services until the Contractor has cured that default - and during that period of time the 
Town shall not be obligated to pay the Contractor for the Substantive Service(s) that it is unable to 
perform. 
If the Contractor cannot cure that default within one hundred twenty (120) days, the Town shall have the 
right to terminate this Contract. Termination of this Contract is the Town's sole remedy and upon 
termination the parties' obligations to each other shall end, provided that the Town has paid all sums owed 
to the Contractor. 

Remedies Available to the Contractor: 
If the Town is in default as provided above, the Town shall have thirty (30) days to cure the default found 
by the arbitrator or agreed by the parties. 

Page 16 of 19 



15.4.2 If the Town does not cure that default within thirty (30) days, the Contractor may have all remedies 
available under law or equity, including but not limited to a suit for injunctive relief and/or for monetary 
damages, attorney fees and costs. 

15.4.3 If the Town does not cure that default within thirty (30) days, the Contractor shall have the option of also 
terminating this Contract and/or bringing an action for breach of contract with remedies as provided above 
and by law. 

16.0 Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable to the other for any failure or delay in performance of this 
Agreement which may be due in whole or in part to any contingency, delay, failure, cause or occurrence of 
any act of nature beyond the reasonable control of that party, whether or not it is presently occurring or 
occurs in the future, including without limiting the generality of the foregoing: fire, explosion, gaseous 
emissions, earthquake, storm, flood, or other adverse weather conditions, accident involving or breakdown 
of machinery or facility involved in the performance of this Agreement from any cause whatsoever, 
strike, lockout, combination of workmen or other labor difficulties (from whatever cause arising, and 
whether or not the demands of the employees are reasonable or within the parties power to grant), war, 
insurrection, riot, act of God or the public enemy, law, act, proclamation, judgment, or decree of a court of 
competent jurisdiction. In any such event, the party shall use its best efforts to resume performance of its 
obligations as soon as possible 

17.0 Miscellaneous. 

17.1 Effective Date. By signing this Agreement the Town agrees that the voters of the Town at a town 
meeting have voted in the affirmative to accept an article that authorized their Board of Selectmen to enter 
into a Solid Waste Contract with the Contractor under the terms and condition as stipulated herein. 

17.2 Notices. All notices required by or useful under the terms of this Agreement shall be sufficiently given or 
delivered if it is dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or 
delivered personally, to the following addresses, or to such other addresses as the parties may designate in 
writing: 

If to the Contractor: 

Jfto Town: 

E.M.R., Inc. 
Attn: Ben C. Worcester, III 
P.O. Box 787 
Southwest Harbor, ME 04679 

Town of Mount Desert 
P. 0. Box 248 
Northeast Harbor, Maine 04662 

17.3 Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and fully 
supersedes all other prior, contemporaneous understandings or agreements, written or oral, between the 
Contractor and the Town relating to the specific subject matter of this Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated hereby. The waiver in any particular instance of any term or condition of this Agreement or 
any breach thereof shall not constitute a waiver of such term or condition or any breach thereof in any 
other instance. 

17 .4 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only with the concurring written consent of both of the 
parties hereto. The Town's Board of Selectmen shall, after due notice of and vote at a public meeting, 
have authority to negotiate and consent to any amendment to the terms of this Agreement. 

17.5 Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions of the Agreement shall for any reason be held to 
be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement and 
this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been 
contained herein. 

Page 17 of 19 



17.6 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so 
executed and delivered, shall be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the 
same Agreement. . 

17.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed according to the laws of the State of 
Maine. 

17.8 Venue for Suits. With the exception of paragraph 16.0 above, any action or suit by either party to enforce 
any of the terms, conditions, covenants or obligations of this Agreement must be brought, if at all, in the 
District or Superior Courts of Hancock County, Maine, and otherwise shall be barred. 

17.9 Immunities Retained. Nothing in this agreement shall be deemed in any manner or for any purpose to 
limit, waive or impair any immunity from judgment or suit or limitation on damages presently enjoyed by 
the Town under provisions of the Maine Tort Claims Act, 14 MRSA section 8101 et seq., as amended, or 
other provisions of law. 

17.10 No Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, or 
similar association between the Contractor and the Town, or to impose any shared liabilities for legal 
claims beyond those existing by law. 

17.11 Attorneys' Fees. If any action, at law or in equity, is necessary to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the 
prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' and experts' fees, costs and necessary 
disbursements from the non-successful Party in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 

17.12 Parties in Interest. Nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, is intended, or shall be construed to 
confer upon any person, firm, or corporation, other than the Contractor and the Town any right, remedy or 
claim under or by reason of this Agreement, it being intended that this Agreement shall be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of the Contractor and the Town. 

17.13 Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned without the prior written consent of the Contractor 
and Town; however such a request shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Town, the Contractor and the Selectmen of the Towns or their authorized 
representative have executed this agreement in duplicate originals as of the date first written above. 

Signature on next Page 

Remainder of Page Blank 

Page 18 of 19 



Recycling Options: (Check or Circle one) 
l._7.3.1 Single Sort Recycling (Option #1) 
2._7_).2 Recycling Option #2 
3. _k:~Jfone 

Signature Page 

E.M.R., INC. 

(By) ~iu~?25 
It 's Vice President 

Town of Mount Desert 

Witness 

Wi~s~\~ll 

(By) 

(By) 

P=" S ctmen 

rv 
Selectmen 

Witness -. \ 

Witn£\;._ • \pa,~ (By)~ 
ect en 

t~,LboU,ll 
Witness .., \ 

Page 19 of 19 



TREASURER’S 
WARRANTS 

 





 Warrants for  BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 2/5/2024

Description # Date Amount

A.  Warrants to be Approved and Signed: 
Town Invoices

AP#2448 02/05/24 970,155.93              

970,155.93$           
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
         (Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )

Town State Fees & P/R Benefits
AP#2445 01/18/24 1,914.59$                
AP#2446 01/25/24 100,852.41$           
AP#2447 01/31/24 7,547.26$                

Town Payroll
PR#2418 01/19/24 111,966.96$           
PR#2419 02/02/24 167,612.38$           

389,893.60$           

C.  Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices

School Payroll
PR#15 01/19/24 200,157.63$           
PR#16 02/02/24 93,399.78$              

Town Voids

293,557.41$           

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING 1,653,606.94$     

T:\TREASURER\SECURE FILES\1- FY 2024 Working Files\Select Board Meeting\2024.02.05 Selectboard Meeting -
\Exceptions Documents\0- Exception Report.xlsx######





To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
:
1
0

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

2
0
0
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
d
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
5
0
2
.
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
2
6
7
.
4
2
 
 
 
2
5
.
8
%

2
0
1
 
M
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
4
,
3
5
2
.
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
7
,
7
1
1
.
7
7
 
 
 
5
8
.
9
%

2
0
2
 
T
o
w
n
 
C
l
e
r
k
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
,
6
5
3
.
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
2
8
6
.
5
6
 
 
 
5
8
.
3
%

2
0
3
 
E
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
4
7
.
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
3
5
2
.
7
3
 
 
 
2
7
.
3
%

2
0
4
 
P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
,
4
5
8
.
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
0
,
1
9
5
.
0
9
 
 
1
5
7
.
8
%

2
0
5
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
,
0
0
5
.
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
,
8
4
5
.
8
2
 
 
 
5
6
.
9
%

2
0
6
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
,
1
4
6
.
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
,
0
6
5
.
7
9
 
 
 
6
2
.
2
%

2
0
7
 
C
o
d
e
 
E
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
,
3
8
0
.
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
,
1
0
3
.
1
0
 
 
 
5
6
.
7
%

2
0
8
 
U
n
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
5
2
0
.
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
,
4
7
9
.
5
2
 
 
 
2
9
.
7
%

2
0
9
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
1
0
9
.
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
9
0
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
5
.
6
%

2
1
0
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
2
,
4
6
0
.
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
4
2
6
.
4
0
 
 
 
7
3
.
5
%

2
1
1
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
M
u
n
 
&
 
C
o
m
m
-
O
r
i
e
n
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

3
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

3
5
0
 
R
u
r
a
l
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
,
5
8
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
4
7
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
9
1
.
7
%

4
0
1
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
6
,
4
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
7
,
1
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
7
,
9
4
6
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
9
,
1
6
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
3
5
.
8
%

4
0
3
 
F
i
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
1
,
3
3
6
,
2
2
1
.
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
1
,
1
1
2
.
6
6
 
 
 
5
8
.
9
%

4
0
4
 
H
y
d
r
a
n
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
5
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
%

4
0
5
 
S
h
e
l
l
f
i
s
h
 
C
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
6
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
8
6
.
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
6
3
.
4
8
 
 
 
5
4
.
1
%

4
0
7
 
A
n
i
m
a
l
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
8
 
C
o
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
4
,
3
2
7
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
1
,
9
6
7
.
6
1
 
 
 
5
3
.
5
%

4
0
9
 
E
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

5
0
1
 
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
1
,
3
3
5
,
0
8
3
.
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
8
,
9
8
4
.
5
1
 
 
 
6
6
.
6
%

5
0
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
9
,
9
6
5
.
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
5
,
1
9
1
.
6
0
 
 
 
5
7
.
7
%

5
0
6
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
,
4
8
2
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
9
,
1
2
6
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
8
.
5
%

5
1
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
5
,
9
6
0
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
,
6
5
8
.
6
1
 
 
 
5
7
.
3
%

5
2
0
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
&
 
G
r
o
u
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
,
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
,
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
4
,
3
8
8
.
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
,
1
2
1
.
1
3
 
 
 
6
2
.
6
%

5
2
5
 
P
a
r
k
s
 
&
 
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
,
1
0
5
.
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
9
6
.
6
8
 
 
 
7
1
.
6
%

5
3
0
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
S
u
s
t
a
i
n
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
2
6
4
.
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
4
8
5
.
6
1
 
 
 
7
0
.
7
%

6
0
5
 
R
e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
6
4
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
5
.
2
9
 
 
 
8
0
.
8
%

7
0
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
1
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
9
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
1
,
7
5
6
,
9
2
2
.
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
,
0
6
6
.
1
6
 
 
 
7
9
.
7
%

8
5
1
 
3
r
d
 
P
a
r
t
y
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
A
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
1
3
0
,
7
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
1
4
,
1
3
1
,
3
6
7
 
 
 
9
,
2
8
5
,
1
2
0
.
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
,
8
4
6
,
2
4
5
.
6
2
 
 
 
6
5
.
7
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
:
1
0

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

1
0
1
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
3
,
5
9
1
.
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
0
,
7
2
9
.
6
6
 
 
 
6
3
.
8
%

1
0
2
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
1
7
.
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
8
2
.
3
1
 
 
 
4
0
.
8
%

1
0
3
 
B
a
r
t
l
e
t
t
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
4
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
3
5
.
1
1
 
 
 
1
1
.
8
%

1
0
4
 
S
o
m
e
s
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
1
0
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
9
4
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
1
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
2
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
5
.
9
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
4
,
7
5
4
.
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
,
3
2
5
.
5
2
 
 
 
6
1
.
6
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
1
:
1
0

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
8
2
,
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
1
4
,
9
8
3
,
4
4
7
 
 
 
9
,
8
0
9
,
8
7
5
.
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
5
,
1
7
3
,
5
7
1
.
1
4
 
 
 
6
5
.
5
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
48

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 5

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
01

34
th

ro
ug

h
32

01
94

83
5,

58
4.

47
$ 

   
   

Ch
ec

k 
pa

ym
en

ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

59
77

5
an

d
59

77
5

19
6.

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

31
74

th
ro

ug
h

31
99

13
4,

37
4.

48
$ 

   
   

AC
H 

Pa
ym

en
ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
97

0,
15

5.
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
7
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
9
9
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
9
9
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
1
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
B
E
N
D
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
2
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
1
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
9
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
4
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
4
.
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
1
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
7
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
.
0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
8
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
5
6
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
3
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
.
4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
.
1
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
4
0
.
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
9
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
3
3
.
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
8
4
2
.
0
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
 
E
M
R
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
0
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
7
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
0
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
1
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
5
8
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
4
8
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
2
8
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
2
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
6
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
4
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
4
3
.
4
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
9
8



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
4
2
2
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
3
 
H
A
R
R
I
S
 
C
O
M
P
U
T
E
R
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
1
2
0
.
8
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
1
2
0
.
8
6

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
 
H
E
D
E
F
I
N
E
 
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
&
 
D
E
S
I
G
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
3
1
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
3
1
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
0
 
I
N
D
U
S
T
R
I
A
L
 
P
R
O
T
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
6
 
D
U
R
L
I
N
 
L
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
7
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
C
O
M
M
E
R
C
I
A
L
 
T
I
R
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
4
9
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
4
9
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
7
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
7
 
N
O
E
L
 
M
U
S
S
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
2
6
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
5
2
6
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
5
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
S
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
7
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
5
1
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
1
1
4
.
8
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
7
6
6
.
7
5



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
3
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
4
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
4
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
1
 
N
O
R
T
H
E
A
S
T
 
E
M
E
R
G
E
N
C
Y
 
A
P
P
A
R
A
T
U
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
1
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
1
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
1
 
P
I
T
N
E
Y
 
B
O
W
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
0
.
9
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
0
.
9
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
0
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
2
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
3
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
4
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
4
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
3
0
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
1
9
.
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
7
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
.
4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
3
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
6
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
0
1
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
3
8
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
3
0
.
3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
8
4
.
3
4



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
1
0
5
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
7
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
8
6
.
0
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
6
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
3
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
.
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
.
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
2
.
4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
8
1
.
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
,
3
6
4
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
3
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
.
8
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
7
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
4
5
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
1
1
 
A
L
L
I
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
4
1
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
4
1
.
6
9



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
3
3
 
A
T
 
M
A
I
N
E
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
8
3
 
A
T
L
A
N
T
I
C
 
F
L
U
I
D
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
Y
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
1
2
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
1
2
.
9
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
6
1
 
A
U
T
O
M
O
T
I
V
E
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
T
O
O
L
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
0
1
 
A
U
T
O
Z
O
N
E
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
U
T
O
Z
O
N
E
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
.
4
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
 
P
U
B
L
I
S
H
I
N
G
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
3
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
9
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
3
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
8
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
6
4
4
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
9
4



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
8
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
4
8
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
7
1
9
.
1
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
9
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
.
3
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
2
3
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
4
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
4
.
1
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
6
5
 
C
A
R
R
O
L
L
 
D
R
U
G
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
4
.
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
R
O
L
L
 
D
R
U
G
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
1
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
R
O
L
L
 
D
R
U
G
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
R
O
L
L
 
D
R
U
G
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
0
5
.
0
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
3
.
0
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
7
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
3
.
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
3
.
4
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
8
4
 
D
 
&
 
R
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
O
N
I
C
S
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
1
5
.
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
1
5
.
1
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
1
9
 
D
A
R
L
I
N
G
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
.
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
.
0
8

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
1
6
 
D
I
R
I
G
O
 
S
A
F
E
T
Y
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
5
8
 
T
E
A
M
 
E
J
P
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
,
 
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
4
3
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
4
3
.
6
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
1
2
0
 
G
A
R
Y
 
S
A
U
N
D
E
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
4
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
1
5
 
F
I
R
E
 
T
E
C
H
 
&
 
S
A
F
E
T
Y
 
O
F
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
5
1
4
 
F
I
R
E
H
O
U
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
7
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
2
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
.
5
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
3
3
 
F
R
E
D
'
S
 
C
O
F
F
E
E
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
.
8
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
.
8
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
9
1
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
5
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
2
3
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
9
1
8
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
9
4
2
.
2
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
1
0
 
G
O
N
E
T
S
P
E
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
0
.
5
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
0
.
5
3

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
5
7
7
 
G
O
V
E
R
N
M
E
N
T
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
R
S
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
5
4
 
G
R
A
I
N
G
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
3
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
I
N
G
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
I
N
G
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
4
.
0
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
8
.
3
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
3
0
 
G
R
A
N
I
T
E
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
C
A
R
E
E
R
 
C
O
U
N
C
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
7
0
 
G
R
O
U
P
 
D
Y
N
A
M
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
5
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
.
7
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
 
H
A
M
I
L
T
O
N
 
M
A
R
I
N
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
I
L
T
O
N
 
M
A
R
I
N
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
7
.
3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
3
.
0
4



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
0
6
4
 
H
A
R
C
R
O
S
 
C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
9
6
 
H
O
M
E
 
D
E
P
O
T
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
1
7
6
 
H
U
B
 
I
N
T
E
R
N
A
T
I
O
N
A
L
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
3
8
 
I
D
E
X
X
 
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N
,
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
4
.
0
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
D
E
X
X
 
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N
,
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
4
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
D
E
X
X
 
D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N
,
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
7
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
3
5
.
8
9

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
5
.
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
0
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
1
.
4
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
4
7
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
9
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
5
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
6
.
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
0
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
0
.
9
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
3
.
4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
2
6
.
3
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
.
7
2



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
.
7
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
6
9
 
M
D
I
 
R
E
G
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
2
,
6
8
9
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
D
I
 
R
E
G
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
2
,
6
8
9
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
5
,
3
7
9
.
3
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
5
2
 
M
O
T
O
R
O
L
A
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
9
1
7
.
4
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
O
T
O
R
O
L
A
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
6
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
8
0
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
0
2
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
S
P
R
I
N
G
 
W
A
T
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
6
8
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
O
S
P
I
T
A
L
 
&
 
H
E
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
3
5
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
T
O
W
N
 
&
 
C
I
T
Y
 
C
L
E
R
K
S
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
9
0
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
W
A
T
E
R
 
U
T
I
L
I
T
I
E
S
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
6
.
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
3
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
.
5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
9
4



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
7
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
2
7
.
5
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
0
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
4
.
7
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
6
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
9
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
4
.
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
0
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
3
2
.
3
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
5
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
6
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
2
.
8
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
8
6
5
 
N
A
T
I
O
N
A
L
 
E
L
E
V
A
T
O
R
 
I
N
S
P
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
5
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
8
8
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
3
1
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
9
2
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
0
0
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
6
9
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
0
3
.
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
,
0
9
7
.
1
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
3
6
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
T
I
R
E
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
S
 
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
T
I
R
E
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
S
 
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
0
.
1
6

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
4
7
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
3
6
5
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
9
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
3
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
7
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
5
9

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
9
4
 
O
L
V
E
R
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
5
1
.
4
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
5
1
.
4
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
0
6
 
O
N
L
I
N
E
 
M
O
O
R
I
N
G
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
6
5
 
P
E
R
M
A
-
L
I
N
E
 
C
O
R
P
 
O
F
 
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
5
.
2
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
5
.
2
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
6
5
7
 
S
E
W
 
A
N
D
 
S
A
V
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
9
3
 
S
P
E
C
I
A
L
T
Y
 
R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
5
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
8
7
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R
,
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
4
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
4
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
6
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
0
0
 
T
R
O
J
A
N
 
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
5
.
7
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
5
.
7
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
7
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
7
.
4
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
8
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
4
2
 
U
S
A
 
B
L
U
E
B
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
.
0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
.
0
9

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
9
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
9
0
 
C
I
V
E
S
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
4
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
8
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
4
.
5
5

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
0
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
5
1
 
V
I
S
I
O
N
 
G
O
V
E
R
N
M
E
N
T
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
0
5
1
.
0
0



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
0
5
1
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
1
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
3
9
 
W
 
B
 
M
A
S
O
N
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
8
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
 
B
 
M
A
S
O
N
 
C
O
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
8
.
2
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
2
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
9
1
 
W
I
E
B
U
S
C
H
,
 
C
H
R
I
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
2
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
3
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
6
0
 
X
E
R
O
X
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
3
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
3
.
7
7

 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
4
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
6
0
 
X
E
R
O
X
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
1
9
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
8
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
5
,
5
8
4
.
4
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
E
F
T
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
,
3
7
4
.
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

D
ire

ct
 D

is
bu

rs
em

en
t: 

Pi
tn

ey
 B

ow
es

   
   

   
   

   
  $

19
6.

98
 

Se
e 

en
d 

of
 re

po
rt 

fo
r C

as
h 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t J
ou

rn
al

   
   

   
To

ta
l  

 $
   

97
0,

15
5.

93
 



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
0
,
2
1
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
0
8
/
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
9
,
7
0
5
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
1
9
,
7
0
5
.
9
8



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
0
,
2
1
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
6
9
,
9
5
8
.
9
5

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
2
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
T
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
F
R

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
7
9
9
.
9
9

4
0
0
 
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
9
,
1
8
5
.
1
2

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
1
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
,
7
4
7
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
5
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
5
9
7
7
5
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
M
A
N
L
 
 
 
1
3
6
7
 
P
I
T
N
E
Y
 
B
O
W
E
S
 
G
L
O
B
A
L
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
I
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
M
A
N
U
A
L
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
5
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
 
 
2
4
4
8
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
 
 
2
4
4
8
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
0
8
/
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8



0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
0
:
5
5
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
45

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
18

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
01

29
th

ro
ug

h
32

01
29

1,
91

4.
59

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
1,

91
4.

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



24
18

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
19

, 2
02

4

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
16

24
3

th
ro

ug
h

16
29

7

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
66

39
5

th
ro

ug
h

66
40

8

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
11

1,
96

6.
96

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2445 & PR#2418 Approval Request-SECOND REQUEST
Date: Thursday, January 18, 2024 6:54:26 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved!
Sent from my iPhone

On Jan 18, 2024, at 6:14 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:


If you received my previous email, please disregard, this is the correct Warrants.
 
Greetings,
 
Attached are the following warrants for approval:
                                    Accounts Payable                #2445     total of          $1,914.59
                                    Payroll                                   #2418     total of          $111,966.96
 
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving
or rejecting.
 
 
I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we
have the one required email approval.
Thank you!
 
Lisa Young,
Finance Clerk, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
<4- AP2445.pdf>
<11- PR2418.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


24
46

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
25

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
01

30
th

ro
ug

h
32

01
31

1,
12

8.
25

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

31
72

th
ro

ug
h

31
73

99
,7

24
.1

6
$ 

   
   

  
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
10

0,
85

2.
41

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2446 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 4:09:39 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved.

On Jan 24, 2024, at 4:03 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

 
Greetings,
 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2446 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the
amount of $100,852.41 for your approval.                      
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or
rejecting. 
I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have
the one required email approval.
Thank you!
Lisa Young,
Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
 
 
<4- AP2446.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


24
47

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
31

, 2
02

4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
01

32
th

ro
ug

h
32

01
33

7,
54

7.
26

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
7,

54
7.

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



24
19

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

, 2
02

4

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
16

29
8

th
ro

ug
h

16
35

0

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
66

40
9

th
ro

ug
h

66
41

9

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
16

7,
61

2.
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2447 & PR#2419 Approval Request
Date: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 5:48:57 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved
Sent from my iPhone

On Jan 31, 2024, at 4:42 PM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:


 
Greetings,
 
Attached are the following warrants for approval:
                                    Accounts Payable                #2447     total of          $7,547.26
                                    Payroll                                   #2419     total of          $167,612.38
 
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving
or rejecting.
 
 
I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we
have the one required email approval.
Thank you!
 
Lisa Young,
Finance Clerk, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
<4- AP2447.pdf>
<11- PR2419.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org






#15







16


	Minutes
	MINUTES Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -2
	Blank Page

	Selectboard Minutes - 2024-02-05
	III. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations
	IV. Consent Agenda
	V. Selectboard’s Reports
	There were no Selectboard’s Reports
	VI. Unfinished Business
	VII. New Business
	MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, approval of Public Space Special Event Application 2-2024 – Help Portrait MDI Seal Harbor Village Green; Saturday, October 5, 2024; 8am – noon as presented.
	Motion approved 4-0.
	IX. Treasurer’s Warrants
	X. Adjournment
	MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to adjourn.
	Motion approved 4-0.
	The Meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m.
	________________________________
	Respectfully Submitted, Geoffrey Wood


	Appointments
	APPOINTMENTS ETC Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -3
	Blank Page

	Colby Hamor 02-20-24-Final for the BOS-CH
	JustinK-AMR-BJ-2-20-24

	Consent
	CONSENT AGENDA Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -4
	Blank Page

	Warrant Cmte. minutes 1-30-2024
	MDNA Thank you (2)
	Emmaus Letter
	Emmaus Homeless Shelter
	51 Main St. (Physical)
	P.O. Box 811
	Ellsworth, Maine,

	GA Compliance

	New
	NEW BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -6
	Blank Page

	TPR Funding Applications
	EMR Contract Renewal SANS Warrent Articles
	ACADIA DISPOSAL DISTRICT
	182 Oak Hill Road, Mount Desert, ME 04660; 207-266-7866; 29parsonscounty@gmail.com
	Re: EMR Contract Renewal and related Information



	Warrant
	TREASURERS WARRANTS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -7
	Blank Page

	Treasurer's Warrant
	0- Exception Report.pdf
	######

	0b- FY24 Budget Report.pdf
	1- AP2448 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP Cover Sheet

	2- AP2448 GL Distribution Journal.pdf
	3- AP2445 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	4- PR2418 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	5- Re_ Warrant AP#2445 & PR#2418 Approval Request-SECOND REQUEST.pdf
	6- AP2446 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	7- Re_ Warrant AP#2446 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	8- AP2447 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	9- PR2419 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	10- RE_ Warrant AP#2447 & PR#2419 Approval Request.pdf
	11- MDES PR15 BOS & UPLOAD.pdf
	12- MDES PR16 BOS & Upload.pdf
	Blank Page


	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2024-02-26.pdf
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, February 26, 2024

	Blank Page



